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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 

Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements.

SEI Investments Company
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unaudited)
(In thousands)

 
   March 31, 2008  December 31, 2007
Assets     

Current Assets:     

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 336,379  $ 360,921
Restricted cash    22,765   10,250
Receivables from regulated investment companies    37,827   38,198
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,029 and $3,032 (Note 4)    244,260   236,911
Securities owned    16,971   16,777
Deferred income taxes    28,730   17,310
Other current assets    14,697   14,567

        

Total Current Assets    701,629   694,934
        

Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of $131,132 and $126,591 (Note 4)    143,635   143,516
        

Capitalized Software, net of accumulated amortization of $39,115 and $34,915    239,662   231,684
        

Investments Available for Sale    71,596   77,169
        

Goodwill (Notes 2 and 3)    22,842   22,842
        

Intangible Assets, net of accumulated amortization of $17,778 and $15,864 (Notes 2 and 3)    58,263   60,177
        

Other Assets    18,468   22,043
        

Total Assets   $ 1,256,095  $ 1,252,365
        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SEI Investments Company
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unaudited)
(In thousands, except par value)

 
   March 31, 2008  December 31, 2007
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity     

Current Liabilities:     

Current portion of long-term debt   $ 7,600  $ 8,000
Accounts payable    10,106   8,690
Payable to regulated investment companies    636   601
Accrued liabilities (Note 4)    158,903   186,902
Capital Support Agreements (Note 7)    50,917   25,122
Deferred revenue    1,915   1,052

        

Total Current Liabilities    230,077   230,367
        

Long-term Debt    39,184   43,971
        

Deferred Income Taxes    75,608   73,600
        

Minority Interest    137,960   136,149
        

Other Long-term Liabilities (Note 11)    12,276   11,895
        

Commitments and Contingencies     
Shareholders’ Equity:     
Common stock, $.01 par value, 750,000 shares authorized; 192,740 and 194,375 shares issued and outstanding    1,927   1,944
Capital in excess of par value    451,920   445,474
Retained earnings    300,988   298,975
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net    6,155   9,990

        

Total Shareholders’ Equity    760,990   756,383
        

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity   $ 1,256,095  $ 1,252,365
        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SEI Investments Company
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

 

 
  

Three Months
Ended March 31,  

     2008      2007  
Revenues:       

Asset management, administration and distribution fees    $260,059    $256,398 
Information processing and software servicing fees     60,139     54,232 
Transaction-based and trade execution fees     13,710     12,095 

     
 

     
 

Total revenues     333,908     322,725 

Expenses:       
Commissions and fees     45,295     42,637 
Compensation, benefits and other personnel     83,892     84,278 
Consulting, outsourcing and professional fees     26,757     20,879 
Data processing and computer related     10,548     10,767 
Facilities, supplies and other costs     17,385     17,560 
Depreciation and amortization     11,520     7,425 

     
 

     
 

Total expenses     195,397     183,546 

Income from operations     138,511     139,179 

Net loss from investments     (24,046)    (316)
Interest and dividend income     4,138     4,051 
Interest expense     (967)    (1,261)
Minority interest     (39,829)    (40,734)

     
 

     
 

Net income before income taxes     77,807     100,919 
Income taxes     28,861     37,542 

     
 

     
 

Net income     48,946     63,377 
     

 
     

 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:       
Foreign currency translation adjustments     (2,922)    (166)
Unrealized holding (loss) gain on investments:       

Unrealized holding (losses) gains during the period net of income tax benefit (expense) of $134 and $(368)   (242)  461  
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income, net of income tax expense of $395   (671)  (913) —     461 

   
 

   
 

      
 

Other comprehensive income     (3,835)    295 
     

 
     

 

Comprehensive income    $ 45,111    $ 63,672 
     

 

     

 

Basic earnings per common share    $ .25    $ .32 
     

 

     

 

Diluted earnings per common share    $ .25    $ .31 
     

 

     

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SEI Investments Company
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited)
(In thousands)

 

 
  

Three Months Ended
March 31,  

  2008   2007  
Cash flows from operating activities:    
Net income   $ 48,946  $ 63,377 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities    19,319   (4,668)

    
 

   
 

Net cash provided by operating activities    68,265   58,709 
    

 
   

 

Cash flows from investing activities:    
Additions to restricted cash for Capital Support Agreements    (12,515)  —   
Additions to property and equipment    (5,545)  (8,399)
Additions to capitalized software    (12,178)  (17,791)
Purchase of marketable securities    —     (3,419)
Sale of marketable securities    1,412   65 

    
 

   
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (28,826)  (29,544)
    

 
   

 

Cash flows from financing activities:    
Payments on long-term debt    (5,187)  (8,119)
Purchase and retirement of common stock    (50,916)  (47,631)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock    4,182   15,271 
Tax benefit on stock options exercised    1,547   7,732 
Payment of dividends    (13,607)  (11,881)

    
 

   
 

Net cash used in financing activities    (63,981)  (44,628)
    

 
   

 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents    (24,542)  (15,463)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period    360,921   286,948 
    

 
   

 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period   $336,379  $271,485 
    

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(all figures are in thousands except per share data)

 
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

SEI Investments Company (the Company), a Pennsylvania corporation, provides investment processing, fund processing, and investment
management business outsourcing solutions to corporations, financial institutions, financial advisors, and affluent families in the United States,
Canada, the United Kingdom, continental Europe, and other various locations throughout the world. Investment processing solutions utilize the
Company’s proprietary software system to track investment activities in multiple types of investment accounts, including personal trust, corporate
trust, institutional trust, and non-trust investment accounts, thereby allowing banks and trust companies to outsource trust and investment related
activities. Revenues from investment processing solutions are recognized in Information processing and software servicing fees on the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations, except for fees earned associated with trade execution services.

The fund processing solution offers a full range of administration and distribution support services to mutual funds, collective trust funds, hedge
funds, fund of funds, private equity funds and other types of investment funds. Administrative services include fund accounting, trustee and custodial
support, legal support, transfer agency and shareholder servicing. Distribution support services range from market and industry insight and analysis
to identifying distribution opportunities. Revenues from fund processing solutions are recognized in Asset management, administration and
distribution fees on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Investment management programs consist of mutual funds, alternative investments and separate accounts. These include a series of money market,
equity, fixed-income and alternative investment portfolios, primarily in the form of registered investment companies. The Company serves as the
administrator and investment advisor for many of these products. Revenues from investment management programs are recognized in Asset
management, administration and distribution fees on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, consistent in all material respects with those applied in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.
Certain financial information and accompanying note disclosure normally included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K has been
condensed or omitted. The interim financial information is unaudited but reflects all adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring adjustments)
which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to present fairly the financial position of the Company as of March 31, 2008, the results of
operations for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, and cash flows for the three month periods ended March 31, 2008 and 2007. These
interim Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Except as disclosed herein, there have been no significant changes in significant accounting policies during the three months ended March 31, 2008
as compared to the significant accounting policies described in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes $161,147 and $185,536 at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively, primarily invested in SEI-
sponsored open-ended money market mutual funds.
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Restricted Cash

Restricted cash at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 includes $10,000 segregated in special reserve accounts for the benefit of customers of
the Company’s broker-dealer subsidiary, SEI Investments Distribution Co. (SIDCO), in accordance with certain rules established by the Securities
and Exchange Commission for broker-dealers and $250 segregated for regulatory purposes related to trade-execution services conducted by our
subsidiary located in the United Kingdom. Restricted cash at March 31, 2008 also includes $12,515 segregated for the benefit of certain SEI-
sponsored money market mutual funds according to the provisions of the Capital Support Agreements (See Note 7).

Capitalized Software

The Company capitalized $12,178 and $17,791 of software development costs during the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. As of March 31, 2008, capitalized software placed into service included on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet had a
weighted average remaining life of approximately 14.3 years. Amortization expense related to capitalized software was $4,200 and $761 during the
three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Company placed the initial version of the Global Wealth Platform into service in July 2007 and a subsequent release of the platform was placed
into service in October 2007. The total amount of capitalized software development costs related to the platform placed into service during 2007 was
$217,764. The Global Wealth Platform has an estimated useful life of 15 years. Amortization expense related to the initial version of the platform
placed into service in 2007 during the three months ended March 31, 2008 was $3,636.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 (SFAS 159),
“The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” SFAS 159 permits companies to choose to measure certain financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value. The standard requires that unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has
been elected be reported in earnings. SFAS 159 was effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The Company elected not to apply the fair value
option to any of its financial instruments and, therefore, SFAS 159 had no impact on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (SFAS 157), “Fair Value Measurements,” which defines fair value, establishes guidelines for
measuring fair value and expands disclosures regarding fair value measurements. SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements but
rather eliminates inconsistencies in guidance found in various prior accounting pronouncements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007. However, in February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) FAS 157-2 which delayed the effective date of
SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements
on a recurring basis (at least annually). SFAS 157 becomes effective for all nonfinancial assets and liabilities for periods beginning after
November 15, 2008, which will be the Company’s first quarter of fiscal 2009. The Company has adopted SFAS 157 for financial assets and
liabilities recognized at fair value on a recurring basis. The partial adoption of SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. See Note 5 for information on related disclosures
regarding fair value measurements.
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Earnings per Share

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 are:
 

   For the Three Month Period Ended March 31, 2008

   
Income

(Numerator)   
Shares

(Denominator)   
Per Share
Amount

Basic earnings per common share   $ 48,946  193,629  $ .25
        

Dilutive effect of stock options    —    4,582  
         

Diluted earnings per common share   $ 48,946  198,211  $ .25
           

   For the Three Month Period Ended March 31, 2007

   
Income

(Numerator)   
Shares

(Denominator)   
Per Share
Amount

Basic earnings per common share   $ 63,377  197,914  $ .32
        

Dilutive effect of stock options    —    6,788  
         

Diluted earnings per common share   $ 63,377  204,702  $ .31
           

Employee stock options to purchase 6,017,000 and 3,612,000 shares of common stock, with an average exercise price of $30.83 and $29.52, were
outstanding during the three month periods ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, but not included in the computation of diluted earnings per
common share because the effect on diluted earnings per common share would have been anti-dilutive.

Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax, consist of:
 

   

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustments  

Unrealized
Holding
Gains

on Investments  

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income  

Beginning balance (Dec. 31, 2007)   $ 9,174  $ 816  $ 9,990 
Current period change    (2,922)  (913)  (3,835)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Ending balance (March 31, 2008)   $ 6,252  $ (97) $ 6,155 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, the Company considers investment instruments purchased with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.
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The following table provides the details of the adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities for the three months
ended March 31:

 
   2008   2007  
Net income   $ 48,946  $ 63,377 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Depreciation and amortization    11,520   7,425 
Undistributed earnings of minority interests    39,829   40,734 
Payments to partners of LSV    (37,620)  (32,322)
Stock-based compensation    4,683   6,517 
Provision for losses on receivables    (1,003)  121 
Deferred income tax expense    (8,884)  1,772 
Net realized (gains) losses on investments    (1,749)  316 
Change in other long-term liabilities    381   10,091 
Other    (3,017)  (2,211)
Change in current asset and liabilities    

Decrease (increase) in    
Receivables from regulated investment companies    371   1,014 
Receivables    1,221   (7,405)
Other current assets    (130)  (465)

Increase (decrease) in    
Accounts payable    1,416   3,779 
Capital Support Agreements    25,795   —   
Payable to regulated investment companies    35   (258)
Accrued liabilities    (14,392)  (33,473)
Deferred revenue    863   (303)

    
 

   
 

Total adjustments    19,319   (4,668)

Net cash provided by operating activities   $ 68,265  $ 58,709 

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) (SFAS 141R), “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 160 (SFAS 160),
“Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51.” SFAS 141R will change
how business acquisitions are accounted for and will impact financial statements both on the acquisition date and in subsequent periods. SFAS 160
will change the accounting and reporting for minority interests, which will be re-characterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as a
component of equity. SFAS 141R and SFAS 160 will become effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. Early adoption
is not permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that SFAS 141R and SFAS 160 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 161 (SFAS 161), “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS
161 requires companies with derivative instruments to disclose information that should enable financial-statement users to understand how and why
a company uses derivative instruments, how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under FASB Statement No. 133
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect a company’s
financial position, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods
beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that SFAS 161 will have on its consolidated financial
statements.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
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Note 2. LSV and LSV Employee Group

The Company has an investment in the general partnership LSV, a registered investment advisor that provides investment advisory services to
institutions, including pension plans and investment companies. LSV is currently an investment sub-advisor for a number of SEI-sponsored mutual
funds. The Company’s total partnership interest in LSV was approximately 43 percent during 2007 and 2008. LSV Employee Group is owned by
several current employees of LSV and was formed for the sole purpose of owning a partnership interest in LSV. The Company does not own any
interest in LSV Employee Group.

Two partners of LSV, excluding the Company, sold in the aggregate an eight percent interest in LSV to LSV Employee Group. The Company entered
into a Guaranty Agreement with LSV Employee Group, LaSalle Bank National Association as administrative agent (the Agent), and certain other
lenders in order to facilitate the acquisition of certain partnership interests of LSV by LSV Employee Group. LSV Employee Group obtained
financing from the Agent and certain other lenders in the form of a term loan pursuant to the terms of a Credit Agreement (See LSV Employee
Group Term Loan below).

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Guaranty Agreement, the Company has agreed to provide an unsecured guaranty to the lenders of all
obligations of LSV Employee Group under the Credit Agreement. In the event of default by LSV Employee Group, the lenders have the right to seek
payment from the Company of all obligations of LSV Employee Group under the Credit Agreement. As recourse for such payment, the Company
will be subrogated to the rights of the lenders under the Credit Agreement and the Guaranty Agreement, including the security interest in the pledged
interests transferred to LSV Employee Group.

As a result of this transaction, the Company has a controlling financial interest in LSV through its direct ownership of LSV and guaranty of LSV
Employee Group’s debt. The Company therefore consolidates the assets, liabilities and operations of LSV and LSV Employee Group in its
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company’s percentage of direct ownership in LSV was unchanged (approximately 43 percent) as a result of
this transaction. The amount of ownership of the other existing partners (approximately 57 percent) of LSV is included in Minority interest.
Assuming no other changes in the Company’s relationship with LSV and LSV Employee Group, the Company would no longer be required to
consolidate the assets, liabilities and operations of LSV and LSV Employee Group after the LSV Employee Group Term Loan is paid in full.
Additionally, the Company may not be required to consolidate LSV and LSV Employee Group if the Company’s percentage of direct ownership in
LSV decreases to certain levels.

The Company determined that $72,220 of the $92,000 purchase price related to identifiable intangible assets and the remaining $19,780 was
goodwill. The identifiable intangible assets have an estimated life of ten years and are amortized on a straight-line basis. The Company recognized
$1,805 in amortization expense in the first quarter of 2008 and 2007, which is reflected in Depreciation and amortization expense on the
accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations. Amortization expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations associated with
the assets of LSV Employee Group was eliminated through Minority interest and had no impact on net income.

 
   March 31, 2008  December 31, 2007 
Intangible asset, at cost   $ 72,220  $ 72,220 
Accumulated amortization    (16,249)  (14,444)

    
 

   
 

Net book value   $ 55,971  $ 57,776 
    

 
   

 

LSV Employee Group Term Loan

In order to finance a portion of the purchase price, LSV Employee Group obtained financing from LaSalle Bank National Association and certain
other lenders in the form of a term loan pursuant to the terms of a Credit Agreement. The principal amount of the term loan is $82,800. The principal
amount and interest of the term loan are paid in quarterly installments. The total outstanding principal balance of the term loan must be paid in full
by January 2011. LSV Employee Group may prepay the term loan in whole or in part at any time without penalty. As of March 31, 2008, the
remaining unpaid
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principal balance of the term loan was $46,784, of which $7,600 is classified as current and included in Current portion of long-term debt and the
remaining $39,184 is included in Long-term debt on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. LSV Employee Group made principal
payments of $5,176 and $4,120 during the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Interest expense for the three months ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007 on the Consolidated Statements of Operations includes $731 and $1,051, respectively, in interest costs associated with the
borrowings of LSV Employee Group which was eliminated through Minority interest and had no impact on net income.

LSV Employee Group made a principal payment of $5,365 in April 2008. The remaining unpaid principal balance of the term loan at April 30, 2008
was $41,419. The Company, in its capacity as guarantor, currently has no obligation of payment relating to the term loan of LSV Employee Group.

The book value of LSV Employee Group’s long-term debt is considered to be representative of its fair value based upon an estimation using
borrowing rates currently available for bank loans with similar terms and maturities.

LSV Employee Group entered into two interest rate swap agreements to convert its floating rate long-term debt to fixed rate debt. These swaps have
a total notional value of $39,168. Payments are made every 90 days and the termination dates of the swaps are March 2009 and January 2011. The
net effect from the interest rate swaps on the Company’s earnings was minimal.

 
Note 3. Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset

In June 2003, the Company purchased an additional percentage ownership in LSV. The total purchase price was allocated to LSV’s net tangible and
intangible assets based upon their estimated fair values at the date of purchase. The excess purchase price over the value of the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets was recorded as goodwill. The total amount of goodwill from this transaction amounted to $3,062 and is included on
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company identified an intangible asset related to customer contracts that met the contractual-legal criterion for recognition apart from goodwill.
The fair value of the intangible was determined to be $3,821 with a definite life of eight and a half years. The identified intangible asset is amortized
on a straight-line basis. The Company recognized $109 of amortization expense in the first quarter of 2007 and 2008, which is reflected in
Depreciation and amortization expense on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

 
   March 31, 2008  December 31, 2007 
Intangible asset, at cost   $ 3,821  $ 3,821 
Accumulated amortization    (1,529)  (1,420)

    
 

   
 

Net book value   $ 2,292  $ 2,401 
    

 
   

 

 
Note 4. Composition of Certain Financial Statement Captions

Receivables

Receivables on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:
 

   March 31, 2008  December 31, 2007 
Trade receivables   $ 54,750  $ 49,852 
Fees earned, not billed    178,100   186,157 
Other receivables    13,439   3,934 

    
 

   
 

   246,289   239,943 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts    (2,029)  (3,032)

    
 

   
 

  $ 244,260  $ 236,911 
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Fees earned, not billed represents receivables earned but unbilled and results from timing differences between services provided and contractual
billing schedules. These billing schedules generally provide for fees to be billed on a quarterly basis.

Other receivables include proceeds from the sale of mutual funds sponsored by LSV received in April 2008.

Receivables from regulated investment companies on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets primarily represent fees receivable for
distribution, investment advisory, and administration services to various regulated investment companies sponsored by SEI.

Property and Equipment

Property and Equipment on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consists of:
 

   March 31, 2008  December 31, 2007 
Buildings   $ 128,481  $ 128,296 
Equipment    63,552   62,272 
Land    9,690   9,548 
Purchased software    46,315   43,580 
Furniture and fixtures    19,383   19,603 
Leasehold improvements    6,374   6,357 
Construction in progress    972   451 

    
 

   
 

   274,767   270,107 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization    (131,132)  (126,591)

    
 

   
 

Property and Equipment, net   $ 143,635  $ 143,516 
    

 
   

 

The Company recognized $5,361 and $4,684 in depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment for the three months ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:
 

   March 31, 2008  December 31, 2007
Accrued compensation   $ 19,874  $ 74,509
Accrued distribution fees    15,390   16,040
Accrued sub-advisor and investment officer fees    13,263   16,026
Accrued consulting    17,209   11,065
Accrued income taxes    36,332   5,196
Other accrued liabilities    56,835   64,066

        

Total accrued liabilities   $ 158,903  $ 186,902
        

Accrued sub-advisor and investment officer fees relates to services provided by fund advisors to SEI-sponsored mutual funds and other investment
programs.

Accrued income taxes also include amounts considered sufficient to pay assessments that may result from examination of prior year tax returns (See
Note 11).

 
Note 5. Fair Value Measurements

SFAS 157 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. SFAS 157 also
establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used by the Company to measure fair value:

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. The Company’s Level 1 assets primarily include investments in SEI-
sponsored mutual funds that are quoted daily.
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Level 2 – Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. The Company’s
Level 2 assets primarily include U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. government agency mortgage-backed debt securities with quoted prices that are
traded less frequently than exchange-traded instruments. The value of these assets is determined using a pricing model with inputs that are
observable in the market or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, or similar techniques, as well as
instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant judgment by management. The Company’s Level 3 financial liabilities
include the Capital Support Agreements which are considered derivative financial instruments (See Note 7). The Company did not have any Level 3
financial assets at March 31, 2008.

The fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities of the Company was determined using the following inputs at March 31, 2008:
 

   Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

   Total   

Quoted Prices
in

Active Markets
for Identical

Assets
(Level 1)   

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)   

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets         
Equity available-for-sale securities   $40,416  $ 40,416  $ —    $ —  
Fixed income available-for-sale securities    31,180   —     31,180   —  
Fixed income securities owned    16,971   —     16,971   —  

                

  $88,567  $ 40,416  $ 48,151  $ —  
                

Liabilities         
Capital Support Agreements   $50,917  $ —    $ —    $ 50,917

                

  $50,917  $ —    $ —    $ 50,917
                

The table below presents a reconciliation for all assets and liabilities of the Company measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the period from January 1, 2008 to March 31, 2008:

 

   
Capital Support

Agreements
Balance, January 1, 2008   $ 25,122
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealized):   

Included in earnings    25,795
Included in other comprehensive income    —  

Purchases, issuances and settlements    —  
Transfers in and out of Level 3    —  

    

Balance March 31, 2008   $ 50,917
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The $25,795 recognized in earnings relates to the change in fair value of the Capital Support Agreements during the three months ended March 31,
2008 (See Note 7).

 
Note 6. Marketable Securities

Investments Available for Sale

Investments available for sale of the Company’s non-broker-dealer subsidiaries consist of:
 

   As of March 31, 2008

   
Cost

Amount   

Gross
Unrealized

Gains   

Gross
Unrealized

Losses   
Fair

Value
SEI-sponsored mutual funds   $37,317  $ 698  $ (1,547) $36,468
Other mutual funds    3,955   —     (7)  3,948
Debt securities    30,469   711   —     31,180

            
 

   

  $71,741  $ 1,409  $ (1,554) $71,596
            

 
   

   As of December 31, 2007

   
Cost

Amount   

Gross
Unrealized

Gains   

Gross
Unrealized

Losses   
Fair

Value
SEI-sponsored mutual funds   $34,213  $ 306  $ (935) $33,584
LSV-sponsored mutual funds    6,781   1,608   —     8,389
Other mutual funds    4,055   62   —     4,117
Debt securities    30,823   256   —     31,079

            
 

   

  $75,872  $ 2,232  $ (935) $77,169
            

 
   

The net unrealized holding losses at March 31, 2008 were $97 (net of income tax benefit of $48). The net unrealized holding gains at December 31,
2007 were $816 (net of income tax expense of $481). These net unrealized gains and losses are reported as a separate component of Accumulated
other comprehensive gains on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

During the three months ended March 31, 2008, the Company recognized gross realized gains from available-for-sale securities of $1,066. There
were no realized gains recognized during the three months ended March 31, 2007. These gains are reflected in Net loss from investments on the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. There were no realized losses recognized during the three months ended March 31, 2008 and
2007.

Derivatives held by the Company were in the form of equity contracts for the purpose of hedging market risk of certain available for sale securities
and held only for the purpose of hedging such risk and not for speculation. The Company entered into these hedging relationships such that the
change in the fair value of the asset being hedged was expected to be offset by a counteracting change in the fair value of the derivative. Since the
Company did not apply hedge accounting to these derivatives, the change in the fair value of the derivative was recognized immediately in current
period earnings, while the change in the fair value of the hedged asset was recorded in other comprehensive income. The Company may continue to
enter into economic hedges which may not qualify for hedge accounting to support certain business strategies. During the three months ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company recognized net gains (losses) of $676 and $(445), respectively, from changes in the fair value of derivative
instruments. These gains and losses are reflected in Net loss from investments on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

On March 31, 2008, the Company’s derivative equity contracts reached their contractual maturity date. The Company received gross proceeds of
$733 from the maturity of the derivative investments in April 2008. The Company no longer owns any derivative financial instruments to hedge
market risk of available for sale securities.
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The Company’s debt securities are investments in U.S. government agency securities purchased to satisfy applicable regulatory requirements of SEI
Private Trust Company (SPTC). The securities have maturity dates which range from 2033 to 2037.

Securities Owned

At March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the Company’s broker-dealer subsidiary, SIDCO, had investments in U.S. Treasury securities reflected
as Securities owned on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Due to specialized accounting practices applicable to investments by broker-
dealers, the securities are reported at fair value and changes in fair value are recorded in current period earnings. The securities had a fair value of
$16,971 and $16,777 at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. The change in fair value recognized during the three months ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007 was minimal.

 
Note 7. Capital Support Agreements

In 2007, the Company entered into Capital Support Agreements with several mutual funds (each a Fund or, together, the Funds), the SEI Daily
Income Trust Prime Obligation Fund (the SDIT PO Fund), the SEI Daily Income Trust Money Market Fund (the SDIT MM Fund), and the SEI
Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund (the SLAT PO Fund). The Company is the advisor to the Funds. The sub-advisor to the Funds is Columbia
Management, which is the primary investment management division of Bank of America Corporation. Various clients of the Company are investors
in the Funds. SDIT PO Fund is rated AAA and Aaa by Standards & Poor’s Corporation (S&P) and Moody’s Investor Services Inc. (Moody’s),
respectively, and the SDIT MM Fund is rated Aaa by Moody’s.

The Funds, among other securities, hold senior notes issued by structured investment vehicles (SIV or SIVs). The senior notes are collateralized by
residential mortgage-backed securities, commercial mortgage-backed securities, corporate collateralized debt obligations and collateralized debt
obligations of asset-backed securities. Some of the SIVs have either ceased making payments or potentially may cease making payments on
outstanding notes on the scheduled maturity dates.

In October 2007, S&P advised the Company that it would place any mutual fund that had an AAA rating and owned certain SIVs on credit watch
with negative implications unless the fund was provided credit support having an A-1 short-term rating by S&P. Although the Company was not
obligated to provide the credit support required by S&P, in order to avoid a credit watch by S&P on the SDIT PO Fund, and to address the needs of
customers who require an S&P AAA rating of the SDIT PO Fund, the Company entered into the Capital Support Agreement to satisfy S&P’s
requirement. The Company entered into a similar agreement with the SDIT MM and SLAT PO Funds.

As of December 31, 2007, the aggregate limit of the Company’s required capital contributions to the Funds according to the Capital Support
Agreements was $130,500. During the three months ended March 31, 2008, certain SIVs within the Funds suffered either a technical default or
substantial price devaluation, triggering ratings downgrades from the principal rating agencies. As a result, the carrying value of these securities in
the Funds was reduced as well. In addition, S&P required the posting of additional capital support for the SDIT PO Fund to maintain the Fund’s
credit rating. As a result of these events, the Company amended the Capital Support Agreements with the SDIT PO Fund and the SLAT PO Fund to
provide additional funding.

As of March 31, 2008, the Company is committed to provide capital to the Funds, subject to the aggregate limit of $150,000 in the case of the SDIT
PO Fund, $3,000 in the case of the SDIT MM Fund, and $9,500 in the case of the SLAT PO Fund, if the Fund realizes payments or sales proceeds
from specified SIV securities held by the Fund which are less than the amortized cost of the SIV securities. Upon the sale or other disposition of a
SIV security, the amount of capital that the Company is required to contribute to a Fund would be the least of the following amounts: (i) the amount,
if any, by which the amortized cost of the SIV security exceeds the amount realized from the sale or other disposition of the SIV security; (ii) the
amount, if any, necessary to restore the net asset value per share of the Fund to $0.9950 (or in the case of the SDIT PO Fund, so long as the SDIT PO
Fund is rated AAA by S&P, $0.9975), or (iii) the remaining amount of the aggregate limit of the Capital Support Agreement applicable to the Fund,
taking into account all prior contributions.
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The Company secured $150,000 of the obligations under the Capital Support Agreements through letters of credit of a third party bank rated A-1 by
S&P. The letters of credit were issued under the Company’s existing credit facility (See Note 8). The remaining $12,500 of the obligations was
secured through segregated bank accounts. The Capital Support Agreements and the letters of credit have a term of one year and are scheduled to
expire in November and December 2008.

In the event that the Company is required under the Capital Support Agreements to commit capital to any Fund, the Company will be required to pay
the required capital contribution to the Fund and will not receive any consideration from the Fund, in the form of shares of the fund or any other
form, for the contributed capital. If the mark-to-market value of a SIV security is less than its amortized cost and if the aggregate net asset value of
the Fund is less than $0.9950 (or in the case of the SDIT PO Fund, so long as the SDIT PO Fund is rated AAA by S&P, $0.9975), then, even though
the loss has not been realized through the sale or other disposition of the SIV security, the Company will be obligated to commit the required amount
of capital so that the Funds net asset value is at least $0.9950 (or in the case of the SDIT PO Fund, $0.9975). However, in this case, the Company is
not required to pay the capital contribution to the Funds.

As of March 31, 2008, the Company is obligated to commit capital to the Funds for $50,917, but was not required to pay such amount because the
Funds did not realize any material losses from the sale of the SIV securities. Cash payments made under the Capital Support Agreements as of
March 31, 2008 were minimal. The Company recorded an expense for $25,795 for the three months ended March 31, 2008 which is reflected in Net
loss from investments on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. At March 31, 2008, the aggregate market value of the SIVs
covered by the Capital Support Agreements on the books of the three Funds was $472,217.

The Company has determined that the Capital Support Agreements are derivative contracts. The fair value of the contracts was determined using a
valuation model for credit default swaps. The fair value of the derivative contracts approximates the value of the Company’s actual obligation at
March 31, 2008. The Company will adjust the value of the Capital Support Agreements at least quarterly. In the event the Company is not required
to make any payments to the Funds, or values increase, such expense may be reversed in a subsequent period.

The Company’s future obligation under the Capital Support Agreements is affected by a number of factors including, but not limited to, prevailing
conditions in the credit markets as they impact the value of money market instruments, including the liquidity of SIV securities, the creditworthiness
of the SIV securities and the overall asset levels of the Funds. Changes in the net asset value of the Funds are dependent upon net investments or
redemptions in the Fund and the net asset value of the portfolio assets of the Funds. Changes in these amounts, including changes in portfolio assets
resulting from mark-to-market adjustments, will affect the per share net asset value of the Funds. The fair market value of the SIV securities is
derived from current market prices or, in the event no market price exists, from independent valuation sources.

The Company believes changes in the value of the portfolio assets of the Funds and changes in the value of the SIV securities are the two most
volatile factors affecting its obligation. These factors can cause the Company’s obligation to fluctuate on a daily basis.

 
Note 8. Lines of Credit

On July 25, 2007 (the Closing Date), the Company entered into a five-year $200,000 Credit Agreement (the Credit Facility) with certain lenders. The
Credit Facility became available on the Closing Date and terminates in July 2012. On March 19, 2008, the Company and the lenders amended the
Credit Facility to increase the aggregate principal amount by $100,000 to $300,000. The aggregate amount of the Credit Facility may be increased by
an additional $100,000 under certain conditions set forth in the agreement. At termination, any aggregate principal amount of loans outstanding
under the Credit Facility becomes payable in full. Any borrowings made under the Credit Facility will accrue interest at 0.45 percent above the
London Interbank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”). There is also a commitment fee equal to 0.09 percent per annum on the daily unused portion of the facility.
The Credit Facility contains various covenants, none of which negatively affect the Company’s liquidity or capital resources. Both the interest rate
and commitment fee prices may increase if the Company’s leverage ratio reaches certain levels.
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Letters of credit of a third party bank to secure $150,000 of obligations of the Company under the Capital Support Agreements were issued under the
Credit Facility in order to satisfy S&P’s requirement that the Funds have credit support having an A-1 short-term rating (See Note 7). The letters of
credit have a term of one year and contain a fronting fee of 0.125 percent per annum on the face amount of each letter of credit which is payable
quarterly in arrears. In addition, a participation fee of 0.45 percent is payable quarterly in arrears on the face amount of each letter of credit. The
participation fee may increase if the Company’s leverage ratio reaches certain levels. As the letters of credit remain outstanding, the amount
available under the Credit Facility will be reduced by the face amount of the letters of credit. Therefore, $150,000 of the Credit Facility is committed
and only the remaining $150,000 is unrestricted and may be used for other purposes as determined by the Company. Certain provisions and terms of
the Credit Facility were amended that provide for a waiver of any breach to various covenants. The Company had no borrowings under the Credit
Facility and was in compliance with all covenants at March 31, 2008.

The Company’s Canadian subsidiary has a credit facility agreement (the Canadian Credit Facility) for the purpose of facilitating the settlement of
mutual fund transactions. The Canadian Credit Facility has no stated expiration date. The amount of the facility is generally limited to $2,000
Canadian dollars or the equivalent amount in U.S. dollars. The Canadian Credit Facility does not contain any covenants which restrict the liquidity or
capital resources of the Company. The Company had no borrowings under the Canadian Credit Facility and was in compliance with all covenants
during the three months ended March 31, 2008.

 
Note 9. Shareholders’ Equity

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company currently has one active equity compensation plan, the 2007 Equity Compensation Plan (the 2007 Plan), which provides for the grant
of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options and stock appreciation rights with respect to up to 20 million shares of common stock of the
Company, subject to adjustment for stock splits, reclassifications, mergers and other events. Permitted grantees under the 2007 Plan include
employees, non-employee directors and consultants who perform services for the Company. The plan is administered by the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company. There were no grants of incentive stock options or stock appreciation rights made under the
plan in 2008 or 2007.

The Company discontinued any further grants under the Company’s 1998 Equity Compensation Plan (the 1998 Plan) as a result of the approval of
the 2007 Plan. No options are available for grant from this plan. Grants made from the 1998 Plan continue in effect under the terms of the grant.

All outstanding stock options have performance vesting conditions based on the attainment of certain earnings per share targets established at the
date of grant. Earnings per share targets are calculated exclusive of stock-based compensation expense, net of tax. The first performance condition
determines vesting of 50 percent of the options, and a second performance condition determines the vesting of the remaining 50 percent of the
options. The performance conditions are measured annually on December 31. Options granted prior to 2006 also could vest in their entirety seven
years from the date of grant. All options outstanding have a ten year life. The Company believes that awarding stock options with performance-based
vesting schedules better aligns the interests of stockholders and employees.

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense in its Consolidated Financial Statements in the three month periods ended March 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively, as follows:

 

   
Three Months Ended

March 31,  
   2008   2007  
Stock-based compensation expense   $ 4,683  $ 6,517 
Less: Deferred tax benefit    (1,578)  (2,324)

    
 

   
 

Stock-based compensation expense, net of tax   $ 3,105  $ 4,193 
    

 
   

 

Basic and diluted earnings per share   $ .02  $ .02 
    

 
   

 

 
17



As of March 31, 2008, there was approximately $60,721 of unrecognized compensation cost remaining, adjusted for estimated forfeitures, related to
unvested employee stock options. The Company estimates that compensation cost will be recognized according to the following schedule:

 

Period   

Stock-Based
Compensation

Expense
Remainder of 2008   $ 13,544
2009    18,056
2010    10,661
2011    6,096
2012    6,054
2013    4,214
2014    2,096

    

  $ 60,721
    

During the three months ended March 31, 2008, the Company revised its estimate of when certain vesting targets are expected to be achieved. This
change in management’s estimate resulted in a decrease of $826 in stock-based compensation expense in the three months ended March 31, 2008.

The Company issues new common shares associated with the exercise of stock options. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the three
months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 was $4,051 and $21,679, respectively. The total options outstanding as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 was
27,077,000 and 27,930,000, respectively.

Common Stock Buyback

The Company’s Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase of the Company’s common stock on the open market or through private
transactions of up to an aggregate of $1,528,365, including an additional authorization on April 22, 2008 for $100,000. Through March 31, 2008, a
total of 250,987,000 shares at an aggregate cost of $1,367,111 have been purchased and retired. The Company purchased 1,963,000 shares at a total
cost of $50,916 during the three months ended March 31, 2008.

The Company immediately retires its common stock when purchased. Upon retirement, the Company reduces Capital in excess of par value for the
average capital per share outstanding and the remainder is charged against Retained earnings. If the Company reduces its Retained earnings to zero,
any subsequent purchases of common stock will be charged entirely to Capital in excess of par value.

 
Note 10. Business Segment Information

The Company’s reportable business segments are:

Private Banks—provides investment processing and investment management programs to banks and trust institutions worldwide;

Investment Advisors—provides investment management programs to affluent investors through a network of independent registered
investment advisors, financial planners and other investment professionals in the United States;

Institutional Investors—provides investment management programs and administrative outsourcing solutions to retirement plan sponsors and
not-for-profit organizations worldwide;

Investment Managers—provides investment processing and operational outsourcing solutions to investment managers, fund companies and
banking institutions located in the United States and to investment managers worldwide of alternative asset classes such as hedge funds, fund
of funds, and private equity funds;
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Investments in New Businesses—provides investment management programs to affluent families residing in the United States and Europe
through the SEI Wealth Network®; and

LSV Asset Management—is a registered investment advisor that provides investment advisory services to institutions, including pension
plans and investment companies.

The information in the following tables is derived from the Company’s internal financial reporting used for corporate management purposes. There
are no inter-segment revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007. Management evaluates Company assets on a consolidated basis
during interim periods. The accounting policies of the reportable business segments are the same as those described in Note 1.

The following tables highlight certain unaudited financial information about each of the Company’s business segments for the three months ended March 31,
2008 and 2007.
 

   
Private
Banks   

Investment
Advisors   

Institutional
Investors   

Investment
Managers   

Investments
In New

Businesses   LSV   Total  
   For the Three Month Period Ended March 31, 2008     
Revenues   $107,054  $ 60,519  $ 50,689  $ 36,493  $ 1,834  $77,319  $333,908 
Expenses (1)    86,167   31,376   30,140   25,964   4,652   47,356   225,655 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Operating profit (loss)   $ 20,887  $ 29,143  $ 20,549  $ 10,529  $ (2,818) $29,963  $108,253 
Profit margin    20%  48%  41%  29%  N/A   39%  32%

 
(1) LSV includes $41,238 of minority interest of the other partners of LSV.
 

   
Private
Banks   

Investment
Advisors   

Institutional
Investors   

Investment
Managers   

Investments
In New

Businesses   LSV   Total  
   For the Three Month Period Ended March 31, 2007     
Revenues   $97,738  $ 61,563  $ 46,629  $ 33,994  $ 1,630  $81,171  $322,725 
Expenses (2)    77,993   29,374   28,173   24,902   4,852   49,897   215,191 
Operating profit (loss)   $19,745  $ 32,189  $ 18,456  $ 9,092  $ (3,222) $31,274  $107,534 
Profit margin    20%  52%  40%  27%  N/A   39%  33%

 
(2) LSV includes $42,672 of minority interest of the other partners of LSV.

A reconciliation of the total reported for the business segments to income from operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the
quarters ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

 
   2008   2007  
Total operating profit from segments above   $108,253  $107,534 

Corporate overhead expenses    (10,109)  (10,127)
Minority interest reflected in segments    42,188   43,592 
LSV Employee Group (1)    (1,821)  (1,820)

    
 

   
 

Income from operations   $ 138,511  $139,179 
    

 
   

  
(1) For the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, includes $1,805 in amortization expense of intangible assets related to LSV Employee Group.
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The following tables provide additional information for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 as required by SFAS 131 pertaining to our
business segments:

 

   Capital Expenditures   
Depreciation and

Amortization
   2008   2007   2008   2007
Private Banks   $11,063  $16,199  $ 6,573  $3,572
Investment Advisors    3,841   5,905   1,621   770
Institutional Investors    1,070   1,255   431   357
Investment Managers    1,112   1,666   552   419
Investments in New Businesses    253   296   114   84
LSV    59   403   205   212

                

Total from business segments   $17,398  $25,724  $ 9,496  $5,414

LSV Employee Group    —     —     1,821   1,820
Corporate Overhead    325   466   203   191

                

  $17,723  $26,190  $11,520  $7,425
                

 
Note 11. Income Taxes

The gross liability for unrecognized tax benefits at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 was $13,643 and $13,329, respectively, exclusive of
interest and penalties, of which $13,075 and $12,719 would affect the effective tax rate if the Company were to recognize the tax benefit. The
Company has not recognized any material changes in tax liability for unrecognized tax benefits during the three months ended March 31, 2008.

The Company classifies interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits as income tax expense. As of March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007,
the combined amount of accrued interest and penalties related to tax positions taken on tax returns was $2,098 and $1,865, respectively.

 
   March 31, 2008  December 31, 2007
Gross liability for unrecognized tax benefits, exclusive of interest and penalties   $ 13,643  $ 13,329
Interest and penalties on unrecognized benefits    2,098   1,865

        

Total gross uncertain tax positions   $ 15,741  $ 15,194
        

Amount included in Current liabilities   $ 3,465  $ 3,299
Amount included in Other long-term liabilities    12,276   11,895

        

  $ 15,741  $ 15,194
        

The Company files income tax returns in the United States on a consolidated basis and in many U.S. state and foreign jurisdictions. The Company is
subject to examination of income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and other domestic and foreign tax authorities. An examination
of the Company’s 2005 and 2006 tax return is currently being conducted by the IRS. In addition, some of the prior year tax returns of the Company’s
subsidiaries are being examined by certain state tax authorities.

The Company estimates it will recognize $1,499 of unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months due to the expiration of the statute of
limitations. These unrecognized tax benefits are related to tax positions taken on certain federal and state tax returns. However, the timing of the
resolution of income tax examinations is highly uncertain, and the amounts ultimately paid, if any, upon resolution of the issues raised by the taxing
authorities may differ materially from the amounts accrued for each year. While it is reasonably possible that some issues in the IRS and other
examinations could be resolved in the next twelve months, based upon the current facts and circumstances, the Company cannot reasonably estimate
the timing of such resolution or total range of potential changes as it relates to the current unrecognized tax benefits that are recorded as part of the
Company’s financial statements.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
                              (In thousands, except asset balances and per share data)

This discussion reviews and analyzes the consolidated financial condition at March 31, 2008 and 2007, the consolidated results of operations for the three months
ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 and other key factors that may affect future performance. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Overview

Our Business and Business Segments

We are a leading global provider of investment processing, fund processing, and investment management business outsourcing solutions that help corporations,
financial institutions, financial advisors, and affluent families create and manage wealth. Investment processing fees are earned as monthly fees for contracted
services including computer processing services, software licenses, and trust operations services, as well as transaction-based fees for providing securities
valuation and trade-execution. Fund processing and investment management fees are earned as a percentage of average assets under management or
administration. As of March 31, 2008, through our subsidiaries and partnerships in which we have a significant interest, we administer $423.5 billion in mutual
fund and pooled assets, manage $184.6 billion in assets, and operate from more than 20 offices in over a dozen countries.

The Company’s reportable business segments are:

Private Banks—provides investment processing and investment management programs to banks and trust institutions worldwide;

Investment Advisors—provides investment management programs to affluent investors through a network of independent registered investment advisors,
financial planners and other investment professionals in the United States;

Institutional Investors—provides investment management programs and administrative outsourcing solutions to retirement plan sponsors and not-for-profit
organizations worldwide;

Investment Managers—provides investment processing, fund processing and operational outsourcing solutions to investment managers, fund companies
and banking institutions located in the United States and to investment managers worldwide of alternative asset classes such as hedge funds, fund of funds,
and private equity funds;

Investments in New Businesses—provides investment management programs to affluent families residing in the United States and Europe through the SEI
Wealth Network®; and

LSV Asset Management—is a registered investment advisor that provides investment advisory services to institutions, including pension plans and
investment companies.
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Financial Results

Revenues, Expenses and Income from Operations by business segment for the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the three months ended
March 31, 2007 were as follows:
 

   
For the Three Month Period Ended

March 31,  

   2008   2007   
Percent
Change  

Revenues:     
Private Banks   $107,054  $ 97,738  10%
Investment Advisors    60,519   61,563  (2)%
Institutional Investors    50,689   46,629  9%
Investment Managers    36,493   33,994  7%
Investments in New Businesses    1,834   1,630  13%
LSV    77,319   81,171  (5)%

    
 

   
 

 

Total revenues   $333,908  $ 322,725  3%

Expenses:     
Private Banks   $ 86,167  $ 77,993  10%
Investment Advisors    31,376   29,374  7%
Institutional Investors    30,140   28,173  7%
Investment Managers    25,964   24,902  4%
Investments in New Businesses    4,652   4,852  (4)%
LSV    47,356   49,897  (5)%

    
 

   
 

 

Total expenses   $225,655  $ 215,191  5%

Income from business segments:     
Private Banks   $ 20,887  $ 19,745  6%
Investment Advisors    29,143   32,189  (9)%
Institutional Investors    20,549   18,456  11%
Investment Managers    10,529   9,092  16%
Investments in New Businesses    (2,818)  (3,222) 13%
LSV    29,963   31,274  (4)%

    
 

   
 

 

Total income from business segments   $108,253  $ 107,534  1%

Corporate overhead    (10,109)  (10,127) —   
LSV Employee Group (1)    (1,821)  (1,820) —   
Minority interest reflected in segments (2)    42,188   43,592  (3)%

    
 

   
 

 

Income from operations   $ 138,511  $ 139,179  —   
 
(1) Primarily relates to amortization costs of identifiable intangible assets.
(2) For the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, includes $41,238 and $42,672, respectively, of minority interest of the other partners of LSV.
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Asset Balances

This table presents assets of our clients, or of our clients’ customers, for which we provide management or administrative services. These assets are not included
in our balance sheets because we do not own them.
 
Asset Balances   As of March 31,   Percent

Change (In millions)   2008   2007   
Assets invested in equity and fixed-income programs   $157,428  $162,022  (3)%
Assets invested in collective trust fund programs    10,813   13,017  (17)%
Assets invested in liquidity funds    16,384   14,938  10%

          

Assets under management    184,625   189,977  (3)%
Client proprietary assets under administration    238,902   195,609  22%

          

Assets under management and administration   $423,527  $385,586  10%

Assets under management are total assets of our clients or their customers invested in our equity and fixed-income investment programs, collective trust fund
programs, and liquidity funds for which we provide asset management services. Assets under management and administration are total assets of our clients or
their customers for which we provide administrative services, including client proprietary fund balances for which we provide administration and/or distribution
services.

Consolidated Summary

Consolidated revenues increased $11.2 million, or three percent in the three month period ended March 31, 2008 compared to the same period a year ago. Net
income decreased $14.4 million, or 23 percent in the three month period ended March 31, 2008 compared to the corresponding period a year ago. Diluted
earnings per share were $.25 in the three month period ended March 31, 2008 compared to $.31 in the three month period ended March 31, 2007.

In our opinion, the following items had a significant impact on our financial results for the three month periods ended March 31, 2008 and 2007:
 

 
•  Revenue growth was primarily driven by increased investment management fees and investment processing fees in the Private Banks business

segment. The revenue growth in the segment was due largely to asset funding from existing global investment management clients, increased fees
from our Global Wealth Technology Services (GWTS) and Global Wealth Services (GWS) solutions and transaction-based brokerage services.

 

 •  Our Institutional Investors and Investment Managers business segments recorded increased revenues and profits from sales of new business.
 

 
•  Declining capital market conditions negatively impacted investment management fees in the Investment Advisors segment. The capital market

conditions decreased the value of assets we manage or administer for our existing clients, resulting in decreased base revenues in this segment.
 

 

•  Revenue and profits in the LSV business segment were also negatively impacted by the declining capital markets. Revenues earned by LSV were
$77.3 million in the three months ended March 31, 2008 compared to $81.2 million in the prior year comparable period. Our proportionate share in
the earnings of LSV was $30.0 million for the first quarter of 2008 compared to $31.3 million for the same period in 2007, a decrease of $1.3 million
or four percent.

 

 
•  We recorded a non-cash charge of $25.8 million in the first quarter 2008 related to agreements that provide capital support to money market funds

holding investments that are exposed to liquidity and credit risk (See Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). These support agreements are
described in greater detail under the caption “Money Market Fund Support” later in this discussion.
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•  We recognized an additional $3.5 million in amortization expense during the first quarter of 2008 due to the initial release of the Global Wealth
Platform, which was placed into service in July 2007. The amortization expense was primarily recognized in the Private Banks and Investment
Advisors business segments. We capitalized $12.2 million in the first quarter 2008 as compared to $17.8 million in the first quarter of 2007 as a
larger portion of our costs were incurred from maintenance and support for the operation of the platform. Capitalized costs in 2008 were for
enhancements and upgrades to expand the functionality of the Global Wealth Platform. We will continue to incur significant development costs for
these enhancements and upgrades. Our intention is to implement enhancements and upgrades into the platform through a series of releases. The
capitalized costs associated with these releases will be amortized over the remaining useful life of the platform.

 

 
•  Consolidated operating margins were negatively affected by increased spending for the development of the necessary infrastructure to deliver and

support new company strategies and solutions and to service new clients. A substantial portion of these costs relate to personnel and third-party
service providers.

 

 
•  We continued our stock repurchase program during 2008 and purchased approximately 1,963,000 shares at an average price of approximately $26

per share in the first quarter of 2008.

Money Market Fund Support

In 2007, we entered into Capital Support Agreements with the SEI Daily Income Trust Prime Obligation Fund (the SDIT PO Fund), the SEI Daily Income Trust
Money Market Fund (the SDIT MM Fund), and the SEI Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund (the SLAT PO Fund) (each a Fund or, together, the Funds).
The terms and conditions of the Capital Support Agreements are described in our latest Annual Report on Form 10-K in Part I, Item 2.

As of December 31, 2007, the aggregate limit of our required capital contributions to the Funds according to the Capital Support Agreements was $130.5 million.
During the first quarter of 2008, certain structured investment vehicles (SIV or SIVs) within the Funds suffered either a technical default or substantial price
devaluation, triggering ratings downgrades from the principal rating agencies. As a result, the carrying value of these securities in the Funds was reduced as well.
In addition, Standard & Poor’s Corporation required the posting of additional capital support for the SDIT PO Fund to maintain the Fund’s credit rating. As a
result of these events, we amended the Capital Support Agreements with two of the Funds to provide additional funding subject to a new aggregate limit of
$162.5 million. Of the new aggregate limit, we secured $150.0 million by our credit facility through letters of credit of a third party bank and secured the
remaining $12.5 million through segregated bank accounts. Also during the first quarter, we amended our credit facility to increase the aggregate amount
available for borrowings by $100.0 million to $300.0 million (See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information related to the letters of
credit and credit facility). As of March 31, 2008, the amount of our credit facility that is unrestricted and may be used for general purposes was $150.0 million.

As of March 31, 2008, the amount of our obligation to commit capital to the Funds was $50.9 million, but this amount was not required to be paid since the Funds
did not realize any material losses from the sale of the SIV securities. However, we were required to record an expense for $25.8 million in the first quarter 2008
which is reflected in Net loss from investments on the Consolidated Statements of Operations of the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. At
March 31, 2008, the aggregate market value of the SIVs covered by the Capital Support Agreements on the books of the three Funds was $472.2 million.

On April 17, 2008, we amended the Capital Support Agreement with the SLAT PO Fund to provide $1.5 million in additional funding. This additional funding
was secured through the segregated bank accounts. As of April 25, 2008, the aggregate limit of our required capital contributions to the Funds was $164.0
million.

As of April 25, 2008, the amount which would be accrued for our contribution obligations under the Capital Support Agreements based on that day’s market
value of the portfolio assets of the Funds, including the SIVs covered by the Capital Support Agreements, was $61.2 million. Based upon this valuation and
assuming no other changes in the portfolio assets through June 30, 2008, an additional non-cash expense of $10.3 million would be recorded in the second quarter
2008. Cash payments made under the Capital Support Agreements as of April 25, 2008 were minimal. At April 25, 2008, the aggregate market value of the SIVs
covered by the Capital Support Agreements on the books of the three Funds was $403.4 million.

We believe that the SIV securities will be successfully restructured, although we cannot predict the timing or net
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impact the restructuring will ultimately have on the realized value of these SIV securities. Excluding the SIV securities in technical default, as of April 25, 2008,
all remaining SIV holdings of the Funds continue to have an AAA or A-1 rating from a major credit rating agency. For further information regarding the portfolio
assets of the Funds, the month-end holdings of each of the Funds can be viewed after the 15th day of the following month at
http://www.seic.com/holdings_home.asp.

The Capital Support Agreements are considered derivative contracts in accordance with applicable accounting guidance and are categorized as Level 3 liabilities
as specified by SFAS 157 (See Notes 1 and 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information related to SFAS 157). These Level 3 liabilities
comprise approximately 22 percent of our total current liabilities. The fair value of the contracts was determined using a valuation model for credit default swaps.
The fair value of the derivative contracts approximates the value of our actual obligation at March 31, 2008.

We believe changes in the value of the portfolio assets of the Funds and changes in the value of the SIV securities are the two most volatile factors affecting our
obligation. These factors can cause our obligation to fluctuate on a daily basis. The following discussion, based on actual values as of April 25, 2008, is included
to give an indication of the impact of movements in the value of the portfolio assets of the Funds and changes in the price of the SIV securities on our obligation.

In the following example, we assume the value of the SIV securities remains unchanged, but the value of the portfolio assets of the Funds increases by ten percent
or decreases by ten percent. A ten percent increase in the value of the portfolio assets of the Funds would cause our obligation to decrease by approximately $2.0
million. Conversely, a ten percent decrease in the value of the portfolio assets of the Funds would cause our obligation to increase by approximately $2.0 million.

In this example, we assume the value of the portfolio assets of the funds remains unchanged but the value of the SIV securities increases by one percent or
decreases by one percent. A one percent increase in the value of the SIV securities would cause our obligation to decrease by approximately $3.0 million.
Conversely, a one percent decrease in the value of the SIV securities would cause our obligation to increase by approximately $3.0 million.

Stock-Based Compensation

Our stock options have performance vesting conditions based on the attainment of certain earnings per share targets established at the date of grant. The first
performance condition determines vesting of 50 percent of the options, and a second performance condition determines the vesting of the remaining 50 percent of
the options. The performance conditions are measured annually on December 31. Options granted prior to 2006 also could vest in their entirety seven years from
the date of grant. The amount of stock-based compensation expense is based upon our estimates of when we believe the earnings per share targets may be
achieved. If our estimate of the attainment of the earnings per share targets proves to be inaccurate, the remaining amount of stock-based compensation expense
could be accelerated, spread out over a longer period, or reversed. This may cause volatility in the recognition of stock-based compensation expense in future
periods and could materially affect our net income and net income per share. During the three months ended March 31, 2008, we revised our estimate of when
certain vesting targets are expected to be achieved. This change in management’s estimate resulted in a decrease of $826 thousand in stock-based compensation
expense in the three months ended March 31, 2008. During the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, we recognized approximately $4.7 million and
$6.5 million, respectively, in stock-based compensation expense. Based upon our current view of how many options will vest and when they will vest, we
estimate that stock-based compensation expense will be recognized according to the following schedule:
 

Period   

Stock-Based
Compensation

Expense
Remainder of 2008   $ 13,544
2009    18,056
2010    10,661
2011    6,096
2012    6,054
2013    4,214
2014    2,096

    

  $ 60,721
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Business Segments

Private Banks
 

   
For the Three Months Ended

March 31,  

   2008   2007   
Percent
Change 

Revenues:       
Information processing and software servicing fees   $ 57,701  $51,389  12%
Asset management, administration & distribution fees    37,113   36,024  3%
Transaction-based and trade execution fees    12,240   10,325  19%

          

Total revenues   $107,054  $97,738  10%
          

Revenues increased $9.3 million, or 10 percent, compared to the prior year corresponding period and were primarily affected by:
 

 •  Increased assets under management from asset funding from existing global investment management clients;
 

 •  An increase in revenues from our GWS solution from cross sales of other services to existing clients; and
 

 •  Increased transaction-based brokerage fees from investment processing clients.

Operating margins were 20 percent during both comparable periods. Operating income increased by $1.1 million, or six percent, compared to the prior year
corresponding period and was primarily affected by:
 

 •  An increase in revenues; partially offset by
 

 •  Increased non-capitalized spending for technology, infrastructure buildout, and personnel associated with the Global Wealth Platform;
 

 •  Amortization expense related to the Global Wealth Platform; and
 

 
•  Increased direct expenses associated with higher levels of assets from existing global investment management clients and the increase in transaction-

based brokerage services.

Investment Advisors

Revenues decreased $1.0 million, or two percent, compared to the prior year corresponding period and were primarily affected by:
 

 
•  A decrease in investment management fees from existing clients due to lower assets under management caused by declining capital markets over the

past two quarters; and
 

 •  A decrease in the average basis points earned on assets due to client-directed shifts to liquidity products.

Operating margins decreased to 48 percent compared to 52 percent in the same period a year ago. Operating income decreased by $3.0 million, or nine percent,
compared to the prior year corresponding period and was primarily affected by:
 

 •  Increased non-capitalized technology spending related to the Global Wealth Platform;
 

 •  Amortization expense related to the Global Wealth Platform;
 

 •  Increased personnel costs for our investment advisors business; and
 

 •  Reduced scale on certain investment product offerings from the decrease in revenues.

Institutional Investors

Revenues increased $4.1 million, or nine percent, compared to the prior year corresponding period and were primarily affected by:
 

 •  Asset funding from new sales of our retirement and not-for-profit solutions; partially offset by
 

 •  Decreased assets under management caused by declining capital market conditions.

Operating margins increased to 41 percent compared to 40 percent in the same period a year ago. Operating income increased $2.1 million, or 11 percent,
compared to the prior year corresponding period and was primarily affected by:
 

 •  An increase in revenues; partially offset by
 

 •  Increased direct expenses associated with the increase in revenues; and
 

 •  Increased sales compensation expenses related to sales of new business and other personnel costs for our investment management operations.
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Investment Managers

Revenues increased $2.5 million, or seven percent, compared to the prior year corresponding period and were primarily affected by:
 

 •  Asset funding from existing clients of hedge fund and separately managed accounts solutions;
 

 •  Cash flows from new clients; partially offset by
 

 •  Client losses.

Operating margins increased to 29 percent compared to 27 percent in the same period a year ago. Operating income increased $1.4 million, or 16 percent,
compared to the prior year corresponding period and was primarily affected by:
 

 •  An increase in revenues; partially offset by
 

 •  Increased personnel and technology costs related to our hedge fund and separately managed accounts solutions.

LSV

Revenues decreased $3.9 million, or five percent, compared to the prior year corresponding period and were primarily affected by:
 

 •  Decreased assets under management from capital market depreciation.

Our total partnership interest in LSV remained at approximately 43 percent during the three month periods ended March 31, 2008 and 2007. Operating margins
remained flat at 39 percent in both periods. Operating income decreased $1.3 million, or four percent, compared to the prior year corresponding period and was
primarily affected by:
 

 •  The decrease in revenues as previously described; and
 

 •  Increased personnel costs.

Other

Other Income and Expense Items

Other income and expense items on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations consists of the following:
 

   
Three Months Ended

March 31,  
   2008   2007  
Net loss from investments   $(24,046) $ (316)
Interest and dividend income    4,138   4,051 
Interest expense    (967)  (1,261)
Minority interest    (39,829)  (40,734)

    
 

   
 

Total other income and expense items, net   $(60,704) $(38,260)
    

 
   

 

Minority interest includes the amount owned by other shareholders in which we have a significant or controlling interest.

Net loss from investments consists of the following:
 

   
Three Months Ended

March 31,  
   2008   2007  
Net realized gain from sales of marketable securities   $ 1,066  $ —   
Increase (decrease) in fair value of derivative financial instruments    676   (445)
Losses from Capital Support Agreements    (25,795)  —   
Other realized gains    7   129 

    
 

   
 

Net loss from investments   $ (24,046) $ (316)
    

 
   

 

Net realized gain from sales of marketable securities in 2008 includes gains recognized from the sale of investments in mutual funds sponsored by LSV.
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Derivative financial instruments are used to minimize the price risk associated with changes in the fair value of our seed investments in new investment
management programs. These derivative financial investments did not qualify for hedge accounting under current accounting rules. As a result, changes in the fair
value of these derivative financial instruments were recorded in current period earnings, whereas the change in the fair value of the hedged asset is recorded in
other comprehensive income. Management’s decision to enter into derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting may cause volatility
in earnings (See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). On March 31, 2008, the derivative financial investments reached their contractual maturity
date. Gross proceeds of $733 from the maturity of the derivative investments were received in April 2008. We no longer own any derivative financial instruments
to minimize the price risk associated with changes in the fair value of our seed investments.

Losses from Capital Support Agreements include a non-cash charge of $25.8 million in the first quarter 2008 related to agreements that provide capital support to
money market funds (See Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

Interest income is earned based upon the amount of cash that is invested daily. The increase in interest income in the first quarter of 2008 compared to 2007
resulted from higher cash balances.

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rates were 37.1 percent and 37.2 percent for the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Our tax rate in 2008 was favorably
impacted by a reduction in the effective state tax rate; however, this reduction was partially offset by the elimination of the research and development tax credit
for expenditures incurred after December 31, 2007.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
 

   
For the Three Months Ended

March 31,  
   2008   2007  
Net cash provided by operating activities   $ 68,265  $ 58,709 
Net cash used in investing activities    (28,826)  (29,544)
Net cash used in financing activities    (63,981)  (44,628)

    
 

   
 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents    (24,542)  (15,463)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period    360,921   286,948 

    
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period   $ 336,379  $ 271,485 
    

 
   

 

Cash requirements and liquidity needs are primarily funded through our cash flow from operations and our capacity for additional borrowing. At March 31, 2008,
our unused sources of liquidity consisted of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $336.4 million and the amount available under our credit facility. The credit
facility agreement became effective in July, 2007 and initially provided for borrowings of up to $200.0 million. The agreement was amended in March 2008 to
provide an additional $100 million in borrowings, raising the total aggregate limit to $300.0 million. The aggregate amount of the credit facility may be increased
by an additional $100.0 million under certain conditions set forth in the agreement. Due to the outstanding letters of credit associated with the Capital Support
Agreements (See “Money Market Fund Support” earlier in this discussion), the unrestricted amount available for working capital needs is limited to $150.0
million. The availability of the credit facility is subject to the compliance with certain covenants set forth in the agreement.

We have arrangements with three mutual funds sponsored by SEI as previously described under the section “Money Market Fund Support.” We may be required
to provide capital to these mutual funds under certain conditions up to an aggregate amount of $164.0 million. In the event that capital must be provided to these
mutual funds, we may, at our discretion, utilize the credit facility or contribute the required capital from unrestricted cash. However, so long as the letters of credit
remain outstanding, the amount available under the credit facility will be reduced by the amount of the letters of credit. Therefore, only the remaining $150.0
million is unrestricted and may be used for other purposes as determined by management. Some of the covenants contained within the credit facility were
amended as a result of the Capital Support Agreements that provide certain allowances and exemptions for transactions arising solely from the Capital Support
Agreements. As of April 25, 2008, capital contributions made to the mutual funds by the Company were minimal.
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Cash flows from operations increased $9.6 million in 2008 compared to 2007 due primarily to increased collections of accounts receivable in 2008 and the net
change in our other working capital accounts. Increased personnel compensation payments partially offset the increase in net cash from operating activities.

Net cash used in investing activities primarily includes the capitalization of costs incurred in developing computer software and capital expenditures. In 2007, the
Global Wealth Platform was placed into service. We will continue the development of the Global Wealth Platform through a series of releases to expand the
functionality of the platform. The costs associated with these enhancements will be capitalized. We capitalized $12.2 million of software development costs in
2008 as compared to $17.8 million in 2007. The decrease in capitalized costs was primarily due to a higher proportion of spending related to the operation of the
platform in 2008, which is not eligible for capitalization (See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

Capital expenditures in 2008 primarily include new computer-related equipment associated with the Global Wealth Platform. In 2007, capital expenditures also
included costs related to the expansion of our corporate headquarters, which was completed in 2007. During the second quarter 2008, we intend to initiate a new
expansion project at our corporate headquarters. Total costs for this project are expected to be at least $8.5 million. The project is expected to be completed in
early 2009.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2008 was also impacted by the requirement to reserve $12.5 million in cash to secure our obligations as of March 31, 2008
related to the Capital Support Agreements.

Net cash used in financing activities primarily includes principal payments of our debt, the repurchase of our common stock and dividend payments. We made the
final payments for the outstanding balance of our Senior Notes in 2007, which includes a principal payment of $4.0 million in the first quarter for the remaining
balance of our Series A Senior Notes. Principal payments in 2008 are comprised solely of payments made by LSV Employee Group for amounts included in our
debt. LSV Employee Group made principal payments of $5.2 million in 2008 and $4.1 million in 2007.

Our Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase of up to $1.5 billion worth of our common stock. Through April 25, 2008, we repurchased approximately
251.1 million shares of our common stock at a cost of $1.4 billion and had $158.8 million of authorization remaining for the purchase of our common stock under
this program. We spent approximately $50.9 million during the first quarter of 2008 and $45.3 million during the first quarter of 2007 for the repurchase of our
common stock. Currently, there is no expiration date for our common stock repurchase program.

Cash dividends paid were $13.6 million or $.07 per share in the first quarter of 2008 and $11.9 million or $.06 per share in the first quarter of 2007. Our Board of
Directors intends to declare future dividends on a semi-annual basis.

We believe our operating cash flow, available borrowing capacity, and existing cash and cash equivalents should provide adequate funds for continuing
operations; continued investment in new products and equipment; our common stock repurchase program; future dividend payments; and expansion of our
corporate headquarters.

Forward-Looking Information and Risk Factors

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking statements. Certain information contained in this discussion is
or may be considered forward-looking. Forward-looking statements relate to future operations, strategies, financial results or other developments. Forward-
looking statements are based upon estimates and assumptions that involve certain risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control or are subject to
change. Although we believe our assumptions are reasonable, they could be inaccurate. Our actual future revenues and income could differ materially from our
expected results. We have no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements.

Among the risks and uncertainties which may affect our future operations, strategies, financial results or other developments are those risks described in our latest
Annual Report on Form 10-K in Part I, Item 1A. These risks include the following:
 

 •  changes in capital markets that may affect our revenues and earnings;
 

 •  product development risk;
 

 •  liquidity issues in the subprime credit markets;
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 •  the performance of the funds we manage;
 

 •  consolidation within our target markets, including consolidations between banks and other financial institutions;
 

 •  the affect of extensive governmental regulation;
 

 •  systems and technology risks;
 

 •  data security risks;
 

 •  third party approval of our investment products with advisors affiliated with independent broker-dealers or other networks;
 

 •  operational risks associated with the processing of investment transactions;
 

 •  risk of failure by a third-party service provider;
 

 •  changes in, or interpretation of, accounting principles or tax rules and regulations;
 

 •  fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates; and
 

 •  retention of senior management personnel.

The Company and our clients are subject to extensive governmental regulation. Our various business activities are conducted through entities which may be
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as an investment advisor, a broker-dealer, a transfer agent, an investment company or with the
United States Office of Thrift Supervision or state banking authorities as a trust company. Our broker-dealer is also a member of the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority and is subject to its rules and oversight. In addition, various subsidiaries of the Company are registered with, and subject to the oversight of,
regulatory authorities primarily in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland. Many of our clients are subject to substantial regulation by federal and state
banking, securities or insurance authorities or the Department of Labor. Compliance with existing and future regulations and responding to and complying with
recent regulatory activity affecting broker-dealers, investment companies and their service providers could have a significant impact on us. We have responded
and are currently responding to various regulatory examinations, inquiries and requests. As a result of these examinations, inquiries and requests, we review our
compliance procedures and business operations and make changes as we deem necessary. One of these regulatory requests and inquiries relate to the payment by
certain of our subsidiaries of expenses related to the marketing and distribution of shares of certain mutual fund clients of our fund administration and distribution
business. A similar inquiry resulted in an SEC order sanctioning one of our mutual fund administrator competitors in 2006.

We offer investment and banking products that also are subject to regulation by the federal and state securities and banking authorities, as well as non-United
States regulatory authorities, where applicable. Existing or future regulations that affect these products could lead to a reduction in sales of these products.
Directed brokerage payment arrangements offered by us are also subject to the SEC and other federal regulatory authorities. Changes in the regulation of directed
brokerage or soft dollar payment arrangements or strategic decisions of our clients regarding these arrangements could affect sales of some services, primarily our
brokerage services.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Interest Rate Risk – LSV Employee Group entered into two interest rate swap agreements to convert its floating rate long-term debt to fixed rate debt. These
swaps have a total notional value of $39.2 million. Payments are made every 90 days and the termination dates of the swaps are March 2009 and January 2011.
The net effect from the interest rate swaps on the Company’s earnings was minimal.

Price Risk – We are exposed to price risk associated with changes in the fair value of investments in marketable securities relating to the startup of new pooled
investment offerings. The length of time that our funds remain invested in these new pooled investment offerings is dependent on client subscriptions. We will
redeem our investments as clients subscribe to these new investment offerings. We did not enter into or hold any derivatives for trading purposes during 2008 or
2007.

Income before income taxes include gains of $676 thousand and losses of $445 thousand for the first quarters of 2008 and 2007, respectively, relating to changes
in the fair value of derivative financial instruments. The aggregate effect of a hypothetical ten percent change in the fair value of our investments would be:
 

   

Hypothetical
Change
In Value

Investment   
Mutual Funds   $ 4,041
Debt securities    3,118

    

  $ 7,159
    

We are also exposed to price risk associated with certain agreements that provide capital support to money market funds holding senior notes issued by structured
investment vehicles (See Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and “Money Market Fund Support” earlier in this discussion).
 
Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report are functioning effectively to provide reasonable assurance that the
information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed by an issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the Act is accumulated and communicated to the issuer’s
management including its principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. A controls system, no matter how well designed and operated, cannot provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the controls
systems are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been
detected.

(b) Change in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over financial reporting occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2008 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

On September 30, 2004, SIDCO was named as a defendant in a putative consolidated amended class action complaint (the “PBHG Complaint”) filed in the
United States District Court for the District of Maryland titled “Stephen Carey v. Pilgrim Baxter & Associates, LTD, et. al.” The PBHG Complaint was
purportedly made on behalf of all persons that purchased or held PBHG mutual funds during the period from November 1, 1998 to November 13, 2003 and
related generally to various market timing practices allegedly permitted by the PBHG Funds. The suit named as defendants some 36 persons and entities,
including various persons and entities affiliated with Pilgrim Baxter & Associates, Ltd., various PBHG Funds, various alleged market timers, various alleged
facilitating brokers, various clearing brokers, various banks that allegedly financed the market timing activities, various distributors/underwriters and others. The
PBHG Complaint alleged that SIDCO was the named distributor/underwriter from November 1998 until July 2001 for various PBHG funds in which market
timing allegedly occurred during that period. The PBHG Complaint generally alleged that the prospectus for certain PBHG funds made misstatements and
omissions concerning market timing practices in PBHG funds. The PBHG Complaint alleged that SIDCO violated Sections 11 and 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act
of 1933, Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, and Sections 34(b) and 36(a) of the Investment Company Act of 1940,
and that SIDCO breached its fiduciary duties, engaged in constructive fraud and aided and abetted the breach by others of their fiduciary duties. The PBHG
Complaint did not name SIDCO or any of its affiliates as a market timer, facilitating or clearing broker or financier of market timers. The PBHG Complaint
sought unspecified compensatory and punitive damages, disgorgement and restitution. In 2006, the plaintiffs submitted a proposed form of order dismissing
SIDCO from the action, but the Court has not yet acted on the proposed order.
 
Item 1A. Risk Factors

Information regarding risk factors appears in Part I—Item 1A of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. There have
been no material changes in our risk factors from those disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for 2007.
 
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.
 

(e) Our Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase of up to $1.5 billion worth of our common stock, which includes an additional authorization of
$100.0 million on April 22, 2008. Currently, there is no expiration date for our common stock repurchase program.

Information regarding the repurchase of common stock during the three months ended March 31, 2008 is as follows:
 

Period   

Total Number
of Shares

Purchased   

Average
Price Paid
per Share   

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as

Part of Publicly
Announced Program  

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares that

May Yet Be
Purchased

Under the Program
January 1 – 31, 2008   —    —    —    $ 112,170,000
February 1 – 29, 2008   1,316,000  26.64  1,316,000   77,108,000
March 1 – 31, 2008   647,000  24.50  647,000   61,254,000

          

Total   1,963,000  25.94  1,963,000  
          

 
32



Item 6. Exhibits.

The following is a list of exhibits filed as part of the Form 10-Q.
 
10.29

  

Capital Support Agreement, dated December 3, 2007 between SEI Investments Company and SEI Liquid Asset Trust
Prime Obligation Fund.

10.29.1
  

First Amendment, dated February 15, 2008, to Capital Support Agreement, dated December 3, 2007 between SEI Investments Company and SEI
Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

10.29.2
  

Second Amendment, dated March 5, 2008, to Capital Support Agreement, dated December 3, 2007 between SEI Investments Company and SEI
Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

10.29.3
  

Third Amendment, dated March 10, 2008, to Capital Support Agreement, dated December 3, 2007 between SEI Investments Company and SEI
Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

10.29.4
  

Fourth Amendment, dated March 24, 2008, to Capital Support Agreement, dated December 3, 2007 between SEI Investments Company and SEI
Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

10.29.5
  

Fifth Amendment, dated March 26, 2008, to Capital Support Agreement, dated December 3, 2007 between SEI Investments Company and SEI
Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

10.29.6
  

Sixth Amendment, dated March 31, 2008, to Capital Support Agreement, dated December 3, 2007 between SEI Investments Company and SEI
Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

10.29.7
  

Seventh Amendment, dated April 17, 2008, to Capital Support Agreement, dated December 3, 2007 between SEI Investments Company and SEI
Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

10.30   Letter of Credit, dated December 3, 2007 in favor of SEI Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

10.31   Letter of Credit, dated February 14, 2008 in favor of SEI Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

31.1   Rule 13a-15(e)/15d-15(e) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

31.2   Rule 13a-15(e)/15d-15(e) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

32   Section 1350 Certifications.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.
 
    SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY

Date: May 2, 2008  By: /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
   Dennis J. McGonigle
   Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 10.29

CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT

THIS CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made as of the 3rd day of December, 2007, by and between SEI Investments Company
(the “Support Provider”) and SEI Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund (the “Fund”).

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, the Fund is an investment company registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission in accordance with the Investment Company
Act of 1940 (as amended, the “1940 Act”);

WHEREAS, the Fund is a money market fund that seeks to maintain a stable net asset value of $1.00 per share using the Amortized Cost Method as
defined in and in accordance with Rule 2a-7 promulgated under the 1940 Act (as amended, “Rule 2a-7”);

WHEREAS, the Fund holds notes and other instruments (the “Notes”) issued by Cheyne Finance LLC and other structured investment vehicles or conduits
shown on Schedule A attached hereto (each, an “Issuer”);

WHEREAS, Rule 2a-7(c)(6)(ii) requires a money market fund to “dispose of [a portfolio] security as soon as practicable consistent with achieving an
orderly disposition of the security, ..., absent a finding by the board of directors that disposal of the portfolio security would not be in the best interests of the
money market fund (which determination may take into account, among other factors, market conditions that could affect the orderly disposition of the portfolio
security)” upon the occurrence of certain events;

WHEREAS, one or more of the events specified in Rule 2a-7(c)(6)(ii) have occurred with respect to certain of the Notes;

WHEREAS, a sale of the Notes under current market conditions is unlikely to result in the full recovery of the Fund’s investments, and may cause the Fund
to realize losses to the extent that it could no longer maintain a stable net asset value of $1.00 per share;

WHEREAS, the Fund’s failure to maintain a stable net asset value of $1.00 per share could adversely affect the Support Provider’s proprietary mutual fund
business, which would reduce the profits derived by the Support Provider from this line of business and potentially injure the Support Provider’s goodwill and
reputation; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Fund (each a “Board”) will consider this Agreement in determining whether disposal of the Notes currently
would be in the best interest of the Fund:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the Support Provider hereby agrees as follows:

1. Definitions. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings indicated:

(a) “Amortized Cost Value” means, with respect to any Eligible Note held by the Fund, the value of that Eligible Note as determined using the
Amortized Cost Method in accordance with Rule 2a-7 on the relevant date.



(b) “Capital Contribution” means a cash contribution by the Support Provider to the Fund for which the Support Provider does not receive any shares
or other consideration from the Fund.

(c) “Contribution Event” means, with respect to any Eligible Note held by any Fund, any of the following occurrences:
 

 
(i) Any sale of the Eligible Note by the Fund for cash in an amount, after deduction of any commissions or similar transaction costs, less than

the Amortized Cost Value of the Eligible Note sold as of the date of settlement;
 

 
(ii) Receipt of final payment on the Eligible Note in an amount less than the Amortized Cost Value of that Eligible Note as of the date such

payment is received; or
 

 
(iii) Issuance of orders by a court having jurisdiction over the matter discharging the Issuer from liability for the Eligible Note and providing for

payments on that Eligible Note in an amount less than the Amortized Cost Value of that Eligible Note as of the date such payment is
received.

The excess of the Amortized Cost Value of the Eligible Notes subject to a Contribution Event over the amount received by the Fund in connection with such
Contribution Event shall constitute the “Loss” on such Eligible Notes.

(d) “Eligible Notes” means the Notes held by the Fund as portfolio securities on the date hereof or any Replacement Notes other than Qualifying
New Securities.

(e) “Letter of Credit” means one or more letters of credit issued by the Letter of Credit Provider for the benefit of the Fund in an aggregate amount
equal to $1,500,000, and which shall terminate no sooner than the date set forth in Section 3(c)(iv) of this Agreement.

(f) “Letter of Credit Provider” means JP Morgan Chase Bank, NA., or any substitute provider whose obligations are rated as First Tier Securities as
defined in paragraph (a)(12) of Rule 2a-7.

(g) “Maximum Contribution Amount” means one million five hundred thousand dollars ($1,500,000).

(h) “Minimum Permissible NAV” means $0.995.

(i) “NAV Deviation” means the deviation, if any, of the Fund’s current net asset value per share calculated using available market quotations (or an
appropriate substitute that reflects current market conditions) below the Fund’s price per share for purposes of distribution, redemption and repurchase of its
shares calculated using the Amortized Cost Method. The NAV Deviation shall be calculated in accordance with procedures adopted by the Fund’s Board in
compliance with Rule 2a-7(c)(7)(ii)(A), except that, for purposes of calculating the Required Contribution Amount, it shall exclude any account receivable or
other asset representing the Support Provider’s obligations under this Agreement.

(j) “Permissible NAV Deviation” means $0.005.
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(k) “Qualifying New Securities” means any Notes or Replacement Notes which are or become “Eligible Securities,” as defined in paragraph (a)(10)
of Rule 2a-7.

(1) “Replacement Notes” means any securities or other instruments received in exchange for, or as a replacement of, the Notes as a result an
exchange offer, debt restructuring, reorganization or similar transaction pursuant to which the Notes are exchanged for, or replaced with, new securities of the
Issuer or a third party.

(m) “Required Contribution Amount” means for the Fund on the date of any Contribution Event: (i) if the Fund’s NAV Deviation, after giving effect
to any Contribution Events and all payments received by the Fund in respect of the Eligible Notes, exceeds the Permissible NAV Deviation, a Capital
Contribution in an amount sufficient to reduce the Fund’s NAV Deviation to such Permissible NAV Deviation after giving effect to such Capital Contribution, or
(ii), in any other event, zero. The Required Contribution Amount is intended to enable the Fund to maintain its net asset value per share at no less than the
Minimum Permissible NAV.

2. Covenants of the Fund. The Fund agrees that:

(a) To the extent consistent with the Fund’s interest, the Board shall consult with the Support Provider with respect to all decisions regarding each
Eligible Note (including, but not limited to, any decision to sell the Eligible Note or to forgo the right to any payment) prior to the occurrence of a Contribution
Event with respect to that Eligible Note. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to cause the delegation by the Board to any person any authority which is
not permitted to be delegated under Rule 2a-7.

(b) The Fund will retain any Capital Contribution and not include the Capital Contribution in any dividend or other distribution to the Fund’s
shareholders. For the avoidance of doubt, for purposes of this subparagraph, the redemption of the Fund’s shares shall not constitute a “distribution” to
shareholders.

(c) The Fund will sell the Eligible Notes (i) promptly following any change in the Letter of Credit Provider’s short term credit ratings such that the
Letter of Credit Provider’s obligations no longer qualify as First Tier Securities as defined in paragraph (a)(12) of Rule 2a-7, or (ii) on the business day
immediately prior to the date set forth in subparagraph 3(c)(iv); provided that, the Fund shall not be required to complete any such sale if the amount the Fund
expects to receive would not result in the payment of a Capital Contribution, or, with respect to an event described in 2(c)(i) above, if the Support Provider
substitutes an obligation or credit support that satisfies the requirement of a First Tier Security within fifteen (15) calendar days from the occurrence of such event
and, during such 15 day period, the Letter of Credit Provider’s obligations continue to qualify as Second Tier Securities under paragraph (a)(22) of Rule 2a-7.

3. Contributions to Fund.

(a) If a Contribution Event occurs prior to the occurrence of a Termination Event, the Support Provider will make a Capital Contribution in an
amount equal to the least of (i) the Loss incurred as a result of such Contribution Event, (ii) the Required Contribution Amount, or (iii) the Maximum
Contribution Amount reduced by the amount of any Capital Contribution previously made by the Support Provider to the Fund.

(b) The Support Provider shall make the Capital Contribution to the Fund not later than one business day after the occurrence of a Contribution
Event, by 12:00 noon, Eastern Time. Each Capital Contribution made hereunder shall be made in immediately available funds,
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without deduction, set-off or counterclaim, to the Fund. In the event that the Support Provider does not make a Capital Contribution when due, the Fund will draw
upon the Letter of Credit by 4:00 p.m. on the day that such Capital Contribution was required to have been made in an amount equal to the Capital Contribution
that is due, and any amount received under such Letter of Credit shall be deemed to be a Capital Contribution made hereunder by the Support Provider.

(c) The obligation of the Support Provider to make Capital Contributions pursuant to this Agreement shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of
(such occurrence, the “Termination Event”) (i) the repayment in full, in cash, of all Eligible Notes, (ii) the Support Provider having made Capital Contributions
equal to the Maximum Contribution Amount, (iii) the receipt of Replacement Notes for all of the Notes that are, or become, Qualifying New Securities, and
(iv) 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on December 1, 2008. Upon the occurrence of a Termination Event, the Fund shall surrender the Letter of Credit for cancellation.

4. Reliance by the Fund and the Board. The Support Provider acknowledges and consents to:

(a) The Board’s reliance on the Support Provider’s obligations under this Agreement in making any determination required under Rule 2a-7; and

(b) For purposes of calculating the Fund’s NAV Deviation, the inclusion of the Capital Contribution that would be payable to the Fund under this
Agreement if all of the Eligible Notes were sold on the date of such calculation for the market value used to calculate such NAV Deviation; and

(c) The inclusion of such amount in the Fund’s audited or unaudited financial statements, to the extent required by generally accepted accounting
principles.

5. Representations and Warranties. The Support Provider hereby represents and warrants that:

(a) It is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization or incorporation and, if relevant under such laws, in
good standing;

(b) It has the power to execute this Agreement, to deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations under this Agreement and has taken all
necessary action to authorize such execution, delivery and performance;

(c) Such execution, delivery and performance do not violate or conflict with any law applicable to it, any provision of its constitutional documents,
any order or judgment of any court or other agency of government applicable to it or any of its assets or any contractual restriction binding on or affecting it or
any of its assets;

(d) All governmental and other consents that are required to have been obtained by it with respect to this Agreement to which it is a party have been
obtained and are in full force and effect and all conditions of any such consents have been complied with;

(e) Its obligations under this Agreement to which it is a party constitute its legal, valid and binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with their
respective terms (subject to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject, as to
enforceability, to equitable principles of general application (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in equity or at law)); and
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(f) Its obligations under this Agreement shall be supported by a Letter of Credit issued for the benefit of the Fund and provided by the Letter of
Credit Provider, which has obtained short-term credit ratings of A-1 from Standard & Poor’s, P-1 from Moody’s Investors Services and F-1 from Fitch Ratings.

6. General.

(a) The Fund may not assign its rights under this Agreement to any person or entity, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the
Support Provider.

(b) No waiver of any provision hereof or of any right or remedy hereunder shall be effective unless in writing and signed by the party against whom
such waiver is sought to be enforced. No delay in exercising, no course of dealing with respect to or no partial exercise of any right or remedy hereunder shall
constitute a waiver of any other right or remedy, or future exercise thereof.

(c) If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid under any applicable statute or rule of law, it is to that extent to be deemed omitted,
and the balance of the Agreement shall remain enforceable.

(d) Subject to the next sentence, all notices shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be delivered when received by certified mail, postage prepaid,
return receipt requested, or when sent by facsimile or e-mail confirmed by call back. All notices shall be directed to the address set forth under the party’s
signature or to such other address as either party may from time to time, designate by notice to the other party.

(e) No amendment, change, waiver or discharge hereof shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the Support Provider and the Fund; provided
that, in no event shall any amendment, change, waiver or discharge hereof extend the date set forth in Section 3(c)(iv), unless the parties hereto have obtained the
prior approval of the staff of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

(f) This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania without regard to its conflict of laws
provisions.

(g) This Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of all mutual understandings between the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof, superseding all prior or contemporaneous proposals, communications and understandings, oral or written.

(h) This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Fund, and no other person shall acquire or have any rights under or by virtue of this Agreement.

(i) This Agreement shall terminate upon the occurrence of any change in the Letter of Credit Provider’s short-term credit ratings such that the Letter
of Credit Provider’s obligations no longer qualify as First Tier Securities as defined in paragraph (a)(12) of Rule 2a-7, unless the Support Provider satisfies the
terms of paragraph 2(c) of this Agreement relating to arrangements for a substitute obligation or credit support. Termination under this Section 6(i) shall not
relieve (i) the Funds of their obligation to sell the Eligible Notes, to the extent that such a sale is required by Section 2(c) of this Agreement; or (ii) the Support
Provider of its obligation to make a Capital Contribution to the Fund following such a sale, to the extent that such sale would give rise to a Contribution Event.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Support Provider has caused this Capital Support Agreement to be executed this 3rd day of December, 2007.
 

SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY

By:  /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
Name:  Dennis J. McGonigle
Title:  Chief Financial Officer

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456

SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME OBLIGATION FUND

By:  /s/ Timothy D. Barto
Name:  Timothy D. Barto
Title:  Vice President

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456
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SCHEDULE A TO SUPPORT AGREEMENT
 

Issuer   Cusip   Par   Maturity
ASSCHER FINANCE CORP   04539EAK7   6,590,000  7/16/08
AXON FINANCIAL   05461FAA5   15,000,000  4/4/08
CARRERA   14443EAN5   10,000,000  12/12/07
CHEYNE FINANCE   16705EEM1   10,000,000  3/25/08
CULLINAN FINANCE   23002RFT2   15,000,000  3/25/08
LIBERTY LIGHTHOUSE   53070PRR1   10,000,000  6/23/08
LIQUID FUNDING   5363A6CQ3   10,000,000  4/10/08
ISSUER ENTITY, LLC*   68966HXXX   14,624,482  10/30/08
STANFIELD VICTORIA   85431AJJ7   10,000,000  12/17/07
STANFIELD VICTORIA   854s31AKE6   20,000,000  3/20/08

 
* These are notes received in the restructuring for Ottimo Funding, Ltd.
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Exhibit 10.29.1

AMENDMENT NO. 1
TO

CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 (the “Amendment”) to the Capital Support Agreement, effective as of the 15th day of February 2008 (the “Amendment Effective
Date”), between SEI Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund (the “Fund”) and SEI Investments Company (the “Support Provider”).

WHEREAS:
 

 1. The parties hereto entered into a Capital Support Agreement, dated as of December 3, 2007 (the “Agreement”); and
 

 2. The parties hereto desire to amend the Agreement on the terms and subject to the conditions provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants, representations and warranties contained herein and intending to be legally bound hereby, the
parties hereto agree as follows:
 

1. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, capitalized terms shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Agreement.
 

2. Section 1(e) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Letter of Credit” means one or more letters of credit issued by the Letter of Credit Provider for the benefit of the Fund in an aggregate amount equal to
three million dollars ($3,000,000), and which shall terminate no sooner than the date set forth in Section 3(c)(iv) of this Agreement.

 

3. Section l(g) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Maximum Contribution Amount” means three million dollars ($3,000,000).

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Capital Support Agreement to be executed this 15th day of February, 2008.
 

SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY

By:  /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
Name:  Dennis J. McGonigle
Title:  Chief Financial Officer

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456

SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME OBLIGATION FUND

By:  /s/ Timothy D. Barto
Name:  Timothy D. Barto
Title:  Vice President

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456
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Exhibit 10.29.2

AMENDMENT NO. 2
TO

CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 2 (the “Amendment”) to the Capital Support Agreement, effective as of the 5th day of March 2008 (the “Amendment Effective
Date”), between SEI Liquid Asset Trust (the “Trust”) on behalf of its Prime Obligation Fund (the “Fund”) and SEI Investments Company (the “Support
Provider”).

WHEREAS:
 

 1. The parties hereto entered into a Capital Support Agreement, dated as of December 3, 2007, and amended February 15, 2008 (the “Agreement”); and
 

 
2. The parties hereto desire to amend the Agreement on the terms and subject to the conditions provided herein, including to amend Schedule A to the

Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants, representations and warranties contained herein and intending to be legally bound hereby, the
parties hereto agree as follows:
 

1. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, capitalized terms shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Agreement.
 

2. Section 1(g) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Maximum Contribution Amount” means five million dollars ($5,000,000).
 

3. A new Section 1(n) is hereby added to the Agreement as set forth below:

“Segregated Account” means an account established by the Support Provider for the benefit of the Fund at a bank which is a qualified custodian under the
1940 Act, which may be an interest-bearing account and/or which account’s assets may be invested into money market instruments, and which during the
term of the Agreement (i) shall hold cash or cash equivalent securities in an amount equal to two million dollars ($2,000,000), and (ii) the assets of which
shall be available to the Fund by means of ACH transfer initiated by the Fund without the requirement of further action or consent by the Support Provider;
provided, however, that the amount required to be maintained in the Segregated Account may be reduced as set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement.

 

4. Section 3(b) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

The Support Provider shall make the Capital Contribution to the Fund not later than one business day after the occurrence of a Contribution Event, by
12:00 noon, Eastern Time. Each Capital Contribution made hereunder shall be made in immediately available funds, without deduction, set-off or
counterclaim, to the Fund. If the Support Provider makes a Capital Contribution when due, then the amount that Support Provider is obligated to maintain
in the Segregated Account shall be reduced by the amount of such Capital Contribution. In the event that the Support Provider does not make a Capital
Contribution when due, the Fund will either, as determined in the sole discretion of the Fund, (i) draw upon the Letter of Credit, or (ii) draw funds from the
Segregated Account,
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in either case by 4:00 p.m. on the day that such Capital Contribution was required to have been made and in an amount equal to the Capital Contribution
that is due. Any amount received under such Letter of Credit or withdrawn from the Segregated Account shall be deemed to be a Capital Contribution
made hereunder by the Support Provider.

 

5. Section 5(f) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

Its obligations under this Agreement shall be supported by (i) the Segregated Account as defined in Section 1(n) of the Agreement, and (ii) a Letter of
Credit as defined in Section l(e) issued for the benefit of the Fund and provided by the Letter of Credit Provider, which has obtained short-term credit
ratings of A-1 from Standard & Poor’s, P-1 from Moody’s Investors Services and F-1 from Fitch Ratings.

 

6. Schedule A of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with a revised Schedule A as attached hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties caused this Amendment No. 2 to the Capital Support Agreement to be executed and to become effective as of the
date first written above.
 

SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY

By:  /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
Name:  Dennis J. McGonigle
Title:  Chief Financial Officer
Date:  

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456

SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST on behalf of its PRIME
OBLIGATION FUND

By:  /s/ Aaron C. Buser
Name:  Aaron C. Buser
Title:  Vice President
Date:  

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456
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SCHEDULE A TO SUPPORT AGREEMENT
As Amended and Restated March 5, 2008

 
Issuer   Cusip   Par   Maturity
ASSCHER FINANCE CORP   04539EAK7   6,590,000  7/16/08
AXON FINANCIAL   05461FAA5   15,000,000  4/4/08
CARRERA   14443EAN5   10,000,000  12/12/07
CHEYNE FINANCE   16705EEM1   10,000,000  3/25/08
CULLINAN FINANCE   23002RFT2   15,000,000  3/25/08
LIBERTY LIGHTHOUSE   53070PRR1   10,000,000  6/23/08
LIQUID FUNDING   5363A6CQ3   10,000,000  4/10/08
ISSUER ENTITY, LLC*   68966HXXX   14,624,482  10/30/08
STANFIELD VICTORIA   85431AJJ7   10,000,000  12/17/07
STANFIELD VICTORIA   85431AKE6   20,000,000  3/20/08
THORNBURG MORTGAGE   88521HBA4   20,000,000  4/14/08
 
* These are notes received in the restructuring for Ottimo Funding, Ltd.
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Exhibit 10.29.3

AMENDMENT NO. 3
TO

CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 3 (the “Amendment”) to the Capital Support Agreement, effective as of the 10th day of March 2008 (the “Amendment Effective
Date”), between SEI Liquid Asset Trust (the “Trust”) on behalf of its Prime Obligation Fund (the “Fund”) and SEI Investments Company (the “Support
Provider”).

WHEREAS:
 

 
1. The parties hereto entered into a Capital Support Agreement, dated as of December 3, 2007, and amended February 15, 2008 and March 5, 2008 (the

“Agreement”); and
 

 2. The parties hereto desire to amend the Agreement on the terms and subject to the conditions provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants, representations and warranties contained herein and intending to be legally bound hereby, the
parties hereto agree as follows:
 

1. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, capitalized terms shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Agreement.
 

2. Section l(g) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Maximum Contribution Amount” means six million dollars ($6,000,000).
 

3. Section 1(n) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Segregated Account” means an account established by the Support Provider for the benefit of the Fund at a bank which is a qualified custodian under the
1940 Act, which may be an interest-bearing account and/or which account’s assets may be invested into money market instruments, and which during the
term of the Agreement (i) shall hold cash or cash equivalent securities in an amount equal to three million dollars ($3,000,000), and (ii) the assets of which
shall be available to the Fund by means of ACH transfer initiated by the Fund without the requirement of further action or consent by the Support Provider;
provided, however, that the amount required to be maintained in the Segregated Account may be reduced as set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement.

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties caused this Amendment No. 3 to the Capital Support Agreement to be executed and to become effective as of the
date first written above.
 

SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY

By:  /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
Name:  Dennis J. McGonigle
Title:  Chief Financial Officer
Date:  

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456

SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST on behalf of its PRIME
OBLIGATION FUND

By:  /s/ Aaron C. Buser
Name:  Aaron C. Buser
Title:  Vice President
Date:  

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456
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Exhibit 10.29.4

AMENDMENT NO. 4
TO

CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 4 (the “Amendment”) to the Capital Support Agreement, effective as of the 24th day of March 2008 (the “Amendment Effective
Date”), between SEI Liquid Asset Trust (the “Trust”) on behalf of its Prime Obligation Fund (the “Fund”) and SEI Investments Company (the “Support
Provider”).

WHEREAS:
 

 
1. The parties hereto entered into a Capital Support Agreement, dated as of December 3, 2007, and amended February 15, 2008, March 5, 2008 and

March 10, 2008 (the “Agreement”); and
 

 2. The parties hereto desire to amend the Agreement on the terms and subject to the conditions provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants, representations and warranties contained herein and intending to be legally bound hereby, the
parties hereto agree as follows:
 

1. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, capitalized terms shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Agreement.
 

2. Section l(g) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Maximum Contribution Amount” means seven million dollars ($7,000,000).
 

3. Section 1(n) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Segregated Account” means an account established by the Support Provider for the benefit of the Fund at a bank which is a qualified custodian under the
1940 Act, which may be an interest-bearing account and/or which account’s assets may be invested into money market instruments, and which during the
term of the Agreement (i) shall hold cash or cash equivalent securities in an amount equal to four million dollars ($4,000,000), and (ii) the assets of which
shall be available to the Fund by means of ACH transfer initiated by the Fund without the requirement of further action or consent by the Support Provider;
provided, however, that the amount required to be maintained in the Segregated Account may be reduced as set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties caused this Amendment No. 4 to the Capital Support Agreement to be executed and to become effective as of the
date first written above.
 

SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY

By:  /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
Name: Dennis J. McGonigle
Title:  Chief Financial Officer
Date:  March 24, 2008

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456

SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST on behalf on its PRIME
OBLIGATION FUND

By:  /s/ Aaron C. Buser
Name: Aaron C. Buser
Title:  Vice President
Date:  March 24, 2008

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456



Exhibit 10.29.5

AMENDMENT NO. 5
TO

CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 5 (the “Amendment”) to the Capital Support Agreement, effective as of the 26th day of March 2008 (the “Amendment Effective
Date”), between SEI Liquid Asset Trust (the “Trust”) on behalf of its Prime Obligation Fund (the “Fund”) and SEI Investments Company (the “Support
Provider”).

WHEREAS:
 

 
1. The parties hereto entered into a Capital Support Agreement, dated as of December 3, 2007, and amended February 15, 2008, March 5,

2008, March 10, and March 24, 2008 (the “Agreement”); and
 

 2. The parties hereto desire to amend the Agreement on the terms and subject to the conditions provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants, representations and warranties contained herein and intending to be legally bound hereby, the
parties hereto agree as follows:
 

1. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, capitalized terms shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Agreement.
 

2. Section l(g) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Maximum Contribution Amount” means eight million five hundred thousand dollars ($8,500,000).
 

3. Section 1(n) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Segregated Account” means an account established by the Support Provider for the benefit of the Fund at a bank which is a qualified custodian under the
1940 Act, which may be an interest-bearing account and/or which account’s assets may be invested into money market instruments, and which during the
term of the Agreement (i) shall hold cash or cash equivalent securities in an amount equal to five million five hundred thousand dollars ($5,500,000), and
(ii) the assets of which shall be available to the Fund by means of ACH transfer initiated by the Fund without the requirement of further reaction or consent
by the Support Provider; provided, however, that the amount required to be maintained in the Segregated Account may be reduced as set forth in Section 3
of the Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties caused this Amendment No. 5 to the Capital Support Agreement to be executed and to become effective as of
the date first written above.

 
SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY

By:  /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
Name: Dennis J. McGonigle
Title:  Chief Financial Officer
Date:  March 26, 2008

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456

SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST on behalf on its PRIME
OBLIGATION FUND

By:  /s/ Aaron C. Buser
Name: Aaron C. Buser
Title:  Vice President
Date:  March 26, 2008

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456
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Exhibit 10.29.6

AMENDMENT NO. 6
TO

CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 6 (the “Amendment”) to the Capital Support Agreement, effective as of the 31st day of March 2008 (the “Amendment Effective
Date”), between SEI Liquid Asset Trust (the “Trust”) on behalf of its Prime Obligation Fund (the “Fund”) and SEI Investments Company (the “Support
Provider”).

WHEREAS:
 

 
1. The parties hereto entered into a Capital Support Agreement, dated as of December 3, 2007, and amended February 15, 2008, March 5,

2008, March 10, March 24, 2008 and March 26, 2008 (the “Agreement”); and
 

 2. The parties hereto desire to amend the Agreement on the terms and subject to the conditions provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants, representations and warranties contained herein and intending to be legally bound hereby, the
parties hereto agree as follows:
 

1. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, capitalized terms shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Agreement.
 

2. Section l(g) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Maximum Contribution Amount” means nine million five hundred thousand dollars ($9,500,000).
 

3. Section l(n) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Segregated Account” means an account established by the Support Provider for the benefit of the Fund at a bank which is a qualified custodian under the
1940 Act, which may be an interest-bearing account and/or which account’s assets may be invested into money market instruments, and which during the
term of the Agreement (i) shall hold cash or cash equivalent securities in an amount equal to six million five hundred thousand dollars ($6,500,000), and
(ii) the assets of which shall be available to the Fund by means of ACH transfer initiated by the Fund without the requirement of further action or consent
by the Support Provider; provided, however, that the amount required to be maintained in the Segregated Account may be reduced as set forth in Section 3
of the Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties caused this Amendment No. 6 to the Capital Support Agreement to be executed and to become effective as of the
date first written above.
 

SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY

By:  /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
Name: Dennis J. McGonigle
Title:  Chief Financial Officer
Date:  March 31, 2008

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456

SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST on behalf of its PRIME
OBLIGATION FUND

By:  /s/ Timothy D. Barto
Name: Timothy D. Barto
Title:  Vice President
Date:  March 31, 2008

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456
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Exhibit 10.29.7

AMENDMENT NO. 7
TO

CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 7 (the “Amendment”) to the Capital Support Agreement, effective as of the 17th day of April 2008 (the “Amendment Effective
Date”), between SEI Liquid Asset Trust (the “Trust”) on behalf of its Prime Obligation Fund (the “Fund”) and SEI Investments Company (the “Support
Provider”).

WHEREAS:
 

 
1. The parties hereto entered into a Capital Support Agreement, dated as of December 3, 2007, and amended February 15, 2008, March 5,

2008, March 10, 2008, March 24, 2008, March 26, 2008 and March 31, 2008 (the “Agreement”); and
 

 2. The parties hereto desire to amend the Agreement on the terms and subject to the conditions provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants, representations and warranties contained herein and intending to be legally bound hereby, the
parties hereto agree as follows:
 

1. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, capitalized terms shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Agreement.
 

2. Section l(g) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Maximum Contribution Amount” means eleven million dollars ($11,000,000).
 

3. Section 1(n) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as set forth below:

“Segregated Account” means an account established by the Support Provider for the benefit of the Fund at a bank which is a qualified custodian under the
1940 Act, which may be an interest-bearing account and/or which account’s assets may be invested into money market instruments, and which during the
term of the Agreement (i) shall hold cash or cash equivalent securities in an amount equal to eight million dollars ($8,000,000), and (ii) the assets of which
shall be available to the Fund by means of ACH transfer initiated by the Fund without the requirement of further action or consent by the Support Provider;
provided, however, that the amount required to be maintained in the Segregated Account may be reduced as set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement.

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties caused this Amendment No. 7 to the Capital Support Agreement to be executed and to become effective as of the
date first written above.
 

SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY

By:  /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
Name: Dennis J. McGonigle
Title:  Chief Financial Officer
Date:  April 17, 2008

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456

SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST on behalf of its PRIME
OBLIGATION FUND

By:  /s/ Timothy D. Barto
Name: Timothy D. Barto
Title:  Vice President
Date:  April 17, 2008

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

One Freedom Valley Drive
Oaks, PA 19456
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Exhibit 10.30

 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610
 

 DEC 3, 2007
OUR L/C NO.:     TPTS-262982

 
TO:  APPLICANT:
SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME  SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
OBLIGATION FUND  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
ATTN: KARL DASHER  OAKS, PA 19456
1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE  
OAKS, PA 19456  

WE HAVE ESTABLISHED OUR IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT IN YOUR FAVOR AS DETAILED HEREIN SUBJECT TO ISP98
 
DOCUMENTARY CREDIT NUMBER:   TPTS-262982

FURTHER IDENTIFICATION:   ISSUE

DATE OF ISSUE:   DECEMBER 3, 2007

BENEFICIARY:   SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME
  OBLIGATION FUND
  ATTN: KARL DASHER
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

APPLICANT:   SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

DATE AND PLACE OF EXPIRY:   DECEMBER 2, 2008
  AT OUR COUNTER

DOCUMENTARY CREDIT AMOUNT:   USD1,500,000.00

AVAILABLE WITH:   JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
  BY PAYMENT

IT IS A CONDITION OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT THAT IT SHALL BE AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED WITHOUT AMENDMENT FOR
ADDITIONAL 12 MONTH PERIODS FROM THE
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610
 

 DEC 3, 2007
OUR L/C NO.:     TPTS-262982

PRESENT OR EACH FUTURE EXPIRATION DATE, UNLESS AT LEAST 30 DAYS PRIOR TO THE CURRENT EXPIRY DATE WE SEND NOTICE IN
WRITING TO YOU VIA SWIFT, TELEX, OR HAND DELIVERY AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS, THAT WE ELECT NOT TO AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND
THIS LETTER OF CREDIT FOR ANY ADDITIONAL PERIOD. UPON SUCH NOTICE TO YOU, YOU MAY DRAW ON US AT SIGHT FOR AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED THE BALANCE REMAINING IN THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WITHIN THE THEN-APPLICABLE EXPIRY DATE, BY
YOUR SWIFT OR PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT AND DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF YOUR OFFICIALS
READING EXACTLY AS FOLLOWS :

THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING USD                     UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-262982
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE US AS WE HAVE RECEIVED NOTICE FROM JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. OF THEIR DECISION NOT TO
AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-262982 AND THE UNDERLYING OBLIGATION REMAINS OUTSTANDING.

IN THE EVENT THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED BY US TO RESCIND A NOTICE OF NON-EXTENSION AND TO
EXTEND THE EXPIRY DATE HEREOF TO A FUTURE DATE, SUCH EXTENSION SHALL BE FOR THAT SINGLE PERIOD ONLY AND THIS LETTER
OF CREDIT WILL NOT BE SUBJECT TO ANY FUTURE AUTOMATIC EXTENSIONS UNLESS AN AUTOMATIC EXTENSION PROVISION IS
EXPRESSLY INCORPORATED INTO SUCH AMENDMENT.

ADDITIONAL DETAILS:

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS AVAILABLE WITH JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. AGAINST PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT AT SIGHT DRAWN
ON JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., WHEN ACCOMPANIED BY THE DOCUMENTS INDICATED HEREIN.

BENEFICIARY’S DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF ITS OFFICIALS READING AS FOLLOWS:

“THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING USD                     UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NO. TPTS-262982
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE AND PAYABLE TO US AS SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY HAS FAILED TO PAY A REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION
AMOUNT AS REQUIRED BY THE CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT BETWEEN SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY AND SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST
PRIME OBLIGATION FUND.”

MULTIPLE DRAWINGS ARE ALLOWED.
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610
 

 DEC 3, 2007
OUR L/C NO.:     TPTS-262982

PAYMENT WILL BE EFFECTED IN IMMEDIATELY AVAILABLE FUNDS BY THE NEXT BUSINESS DAY UPON RECEIPT OF PRESENTATION OF
DOCUMENTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LETTER OF CREDIT TERMS AT OUR ADDRESS SPECIFIED BELOW.

ALL CORRESPONDENCE AND ANY DRAWINGS HEREUNDER ARE TO BE DIRECTED TO:

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
C/O JPMORGAN TREASURY SERVICES
ATTENTION: STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT DEPARTMENT, 4TH FLOOR
10420 HIGHLAND MANOR DRIVE
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33610

CUSTOMER INQUIRY NUMBER IS 1-800-634-1969 CHOOSE OPTION 1. CUSTOMER INQUIRY E-MAIL ADDRESS IS:
GTS.CLIENT.SERVICES@JPMCHASE.COM. PLEASE HAVE OUR REFERENCE NUMBER AVAILABLE WHEN YOU CONTACT US.

WE HEREBY AGREE WITH YOU THAT DRAFTS DRAWN UNDER AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS
LETTER OF CREDIT WILL BE DULY HONORED.

THE NUMBER AND THE DATE OF OUR CREDIT AND THE NAME OF OUR BANK MUST BE QUOTED ON ALL DRAFTS REQUIRED.

THIS IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE INTERNATIONAL STANDBY PRACTICES (1998),
INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PUBLICATION NO. 590.

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,
WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT OF LAWS.
 

/s/ HENRY AVELINO
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

HENRY AVELINO
ASSISTANT VICE PRESIDENT
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Exhibit 10.31

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

FEB 14, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-347612

 
TO :  APPLICANT:
SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME  SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
OBLIGATION FUND  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
ATTN: TIM BARTO  OAKS, PA 19456
1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE  
OAKS, PA 19456  

WE HAVE ESTABLISHED OUR IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT IN YOUR FAVOR AS DETAILED HEREIN SUBJECT TO ISP98
 
DOCUMENTARY CREDIT NUMBER:   TPTS-347612

FURTHER IDENTIFICATION:   ISSUE

DATE OF ISSUE:   FEBRUARY 14, 2008

BENEFICIARY:   SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME
  OBLIGATION FUND
  ATTN: TIM BARTO
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

APPLICANT:   SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

DATE AND PLACE OF EXPIRY:   DECEMBER 2, 2008
  AT OUR COUNTER

DOCUMENTARY CREDIT AMOUNT:   USD1,500,000.00

AVAILABLE WITH:   JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
  BY PAYMENT
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

FEB 14, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-347612

IT IS A CONDITION OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT THAT IT SHALL BE AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED WITHOUT AMENDMENT FOR
ADDITIONAL 12 MONTH PERIODS FROM THE PRESENT OR EACH FUTURE EXPIRATION DATE, UNLESS AT LEAST 30 DAYS PRIOR TO THE
CURRENT EXPIRY DATE WE SEND NOTICE IN WRITING TO YOU VIA SWIFT, OR HAND DELIVERY AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS, THAT WE
ELECT NOT TO AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND THIS LETTER OF CREDIT FOR ANY ADDITIONAL PERIOD. UPON SUCH NOTICE TO YOU, YOU
MAY DRAW ON US AT SIGHT FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED THE BALANCE REMAINING IN THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WITHIN THE
THEN-APPLICABLE EXPIRY DATE, BY YOUR SWIFT OR PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT AND DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED
BY ONE OF YOUR OFFICIALS READING AS FOLLOWS:

QUOTE

THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING USD                      UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-347612
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE US AS WE HAVE RECEIVED NOTICE FROM JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. OF THEIR DECISION NOT TO
AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-347612 AND THE UNDERLYING OBLIGATION REMAINS OUTSTANDING.

UNQUOTE

IN THE EVENT THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED BY US TO RESCIND A NOTICE OF NON-EXTENSION AND TO
EXTEND THE EXPIRY DATE HEREOF TO A FUTURE DATE, SUCH EXTENSION SHALL BE FOR THAT SINGLE PERIOD ONLY AND THIS LETTER
OF CREDIT WILL NOT BE SUBJECT TO ANY FUTURE AUTOMATIC EXTENSIONS UNLESS AN AUTOMATIC EXTENSION PROVISION IS
EXPRESSLY INCORPORATED INTO SUCH AMENDMENT.

ADDITIONAL DETAILS:

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS AVAILABLE WITH JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. AGAINST PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT AT SIGHT DRAWN
ON JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., WHEN ACCOMPANIED BY THE DOCUMENTS INDICATED HEREIN.

BENEFICIARY’S DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF ITS OFFICIALS READING AS FOLLOWS:

“THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING, USD                    , UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NO. TPTS-347612
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE US AS SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY HAS FAILED TO PAY A REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT AS REQUIRED
BY THE CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT BETWEEN SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY AND SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME OBLIGATION
FUND.”
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

FEB 14, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-347612

MULTIPLE DRAWINGS ARE ALLOWED.

PAYMENT WILL BE EFFECTED IN IMMEDIATELY AVAILABLE FUNDS BY THE NEXT BUSINESS DAY UPON RECEIPT OF PRESENTATION OF
DOCUMENTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LETTER OF CREDIT TERMS AT OUR ADDRESS SPECIFIED BELOW.

ALL CORRESPONDENCE AND ANY DRAWINGS HEREUNDER ARE TO BE DIRECTED TO JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., C/O JPMORGAN
TREASURY SERVICES, STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT DEPT. 4TH FL. 10420 HIGHLAND MANOR DRIVE, TAMPA, FLORIDA 33610. CUSTOMER
INQUIRY NUMBER IS 1-800-634-1969 CHOOSE OPTION 1. E-MAIL ADDRESS IS: GTS.CLIENT.SERVICES@JPMCHASE.COM. PLEASE HAVE OUR
REFERENCE NUMBER AVAILABLE WHEN YOU CONTACT US.

WE HEREBY AGREE WITH YOU THAT DRAFTS DRAWN UNDER AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS
LETTER OF CREDIT WILL BE DULY HONORED.

THE NUMBER AND THE DATE OF OUR CREDIT AND THE NAME OF OUR BANK MUST BE QUOTED ON ALL DRAFTS REQUIRED.

EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN, THE LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBJECT TO THE INTERNATIONAL STANDBY PRACTICES (1998),
INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PUBLICATION NO. 590.

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,
WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT OF LAWS.
 

/s/ Henry Avelino
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

HENRY AVELINO
ASSISTANT VICE PRESIDENT
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Alfred P. West, Jr., Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of SEI Investments Company, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of SEI Investments Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over
financial reporting.

 
Date: May 2, 2008  /s/ Alfred P. West, Jr.

 Alfred P. West, Jr.
 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Dennis J. McGonigle, Chief Financial Officer of SEI Investments Company, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of SEI Investments Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over
financial reporting.

 
Date: May 2, 2008  /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle

 Dennis J. McGonigle
 Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Alfred P. West, Jr., Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and I, Dennis J. McGonigle, Chief Financial Officer, of SEI Investments Company, a
Pennsylvania corporation (the “Company”), hereby certify that, to my knowledge:

(1) The Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008 (the “Form 10-Q”) fully complies with the requirements
of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: May 2, 2008   Date: May 2, 2008

/s/ Alfred P. West, Jr.   /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
Alfred P. West, Jr.   Dennis J. McGonigle
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer   Chief Financial Officer

  
  
  

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


